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Overview

At TFS, 2003 was a year of tremendous change, tough decisions, some
disappointments, and success on many fronts. Chief among our successes
was the complete transformation of TFS into a multi-dimensional company
with broad manufacturing capabilities and a unique added expertise in
displays. This was an accomplishment due in large part to the creative and
tireless efforts of so many of our employees around the globe who joined me
in re-defining our company. To them | extend my personal thanks.

Prior to late 2002, we were exclusively a monochrome custom LCD module supplier servicing
primarily one customer in one market. Today, while displays remain a key area of our expertise,
we are no longer exclusively a display company. We are a truly global electronics manufacturing
services, or EMS, company with a unique and valuable set of capabilities in both displays and RF
modules. We embrace this new definition with confidence and we approach our new markets with
strength. This confidence comes from the fact that while this may seem to be a new definition for
TFS, we have actually been a specialized manufacturing company for over fifteen years. We also
believe that our knowledge in displays and RF modules is difficult for competitors to replicate.

Today, we maintain a global footprint that offers our customers access to a woridwide design
team, strong supply-chain expertise, new product launch facilities in the United States and in
Asia, and high-volume, cost-efficient manufacturing locations throughout Asia. All of this capa-
bility is offered with intimate customer service, often found at only the smallest EMS companies.
In addition, our unique expertise in displays and our growing competency in RF modules are
allowing us to target specific markets, such as medical and gaming, that we believe will drive
more profitable revenue in the future. We pursue these opportunities with a skilled team and a
strong financial position that lets our customers know that TFS is a true contender in the world
of EMS providers.

Year in Review

Our focus on becoming a complete EMS company in 2003
demanded that we step away from one business and
acquire some new ones. So in September we successfully
spun off our research-intensive LCoS microdisplay busi-
ness as Brillian Corporation. Brillian is now an independent,
public company (NASD: BRLC). The spin-off of Brillian not
only created value for our stockholders, it was a key
element in allowing each company to focus its energy and
investment on increasingly divergent objectives. While TFS
holds no ownership position in Brillian, | continue to serve
as that company’s Chairman of the Board.

The spin-off of Brilian allowed us to strengthen the EMS
core of our business by changing the way we invested in
our company. That investment took the form of several
acquisitions throughout the year that enabled us to
advance rapidly into a broad-based electronics manufac-
turing services company that now offers advanced printed

circuit board assembly, RF module assembly, and box
build. In April, we entered into an arrangement to acquire a
60% stake in Unico, a world-class EMS provider in
Penang, Malaysia. While our acquisition of ETMA in 2002
positioned us firmly in the domestic EMS world, our acqui-
sition of Unico expanded our EMS presence to a global
scale. As we go to press with this report, we continue to
build upon that core with the recent announcement that we
have purchased the raw materials inventory and hired
several key employees of Integrex, a small, U.S.-based
EMS provider. We also obtained the rights to most of
Integrex’s customers and agreed with these customers that
we would manufacture their products in our Redmond
manufacturing facility. In addition to removing a competitor
from the playing field and expanding our own presence as
a dominant EMS force in the northwestern United States,
the Integrex arrangement will deliver customers that are
positioned within several of our target markets.
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Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

The statements contained in this report on Form 10-K that are not purely historical are forward-looking statements
within the meaning of applicable securities laws. Forward-looking statements include statements regarding our
"expectations,” "anticipation," "intentions," "beliefs," or "strategies" regarding the future. Forward-looking
statements also include statements regarding revenue, margins, expenses, and earnings analysis for fiscal 2004 and
thereafter, technological innovations; future products or product development; our product development strategies,
potential acquisitions or strategic alliances, the success of particular product or marketing programs; the amounts
of revenue generated as a result of sales to significant customers, and liquidity and anticipated cash needs and
availability. All forward-looking statements included in this report are based on information available to us as of
the filing date of this report, and we assume no obligation to update any such forward-looking statements. Our
actual results could differ materially from the forward-looking statements. Among the factors that could cause
actual results to differ materially arve the factors discussed in Item 1, "Business — Risk Factors."




PART1
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Overview

We are a global provider of electronics manufacturing services, or EMS. We design and/or manufacture
printed circuit board assemblies, radio frequency, or RF, modules, display modules and systems, and complete
systems for customers in the automotive, computing, consumer, industrial, medical, and telecommunications
industries. Our services include advanced engineering support, "designed for” services, automated printed circuit
board assembly, in-circuit and functional testing, systems level integration and box build, turn-key packaging,
fulfillment services, and turn-key supply chain management services, all of which enable our customers the ability
to outsource various stages of product engineering, design, development, materials procurement and management,
manufacturing, and testing. Unlike most EMS companies, our design and manufacturing services include a
distinctive competence in display modules and systems and the integration of display modules and systems into
other products. These display modules and systems include monochrome and color liquid crystal display, or LCD,
components, organic light emitting diodes, or OLEDs, and flat panel monitors.

Our website is located at www.tfsc.com. Through our website, we make available free of charge our
annual report on Form 10-K, our proxy statement, our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, our current reports on Form
8-K, any amendments to those reports filed or furnished under the Securities Exchange Act, and our earnings press
releases. These reports and press releases are available as soon as reasonably practical after we electronically file
them with the Securities and Exchange Commission. We also post on our website the charters of our Audit,
Compensation, and Nominating/Corporate Governance Committees; our Corporate Governance Guidelines, Code of
Business Conduct Ethics, and Code of Ethics for the CEO and Senior Financial Officers, and any amendments of or
waiver thereto; and any other corporate governance materials contemplated by SEC and NYSE regulations. These
documents are also available in print to any stockholder requesting a copy from our corporate secretary at our
principal executive offices.

Industry Overview

Historically, original equipment manufacturers, or OEMs, have been fully integrated, performing the
engineering and design, new product introduction, assembly and manufacturing, testing, procurement, distribution
and logistics, and aftermarket support functions for their products. In recent years, however, OEMs have been under
intense pressure to reduce costs, focus on core competencies, and reduce supply chain investment. In response,
OEMs have increasingly outsourced these functions to EMS companies. By focusing on these functions, we believe
that EMS companies provide OEMs with cost savings, superior technological know-how, and access to more
advanced manufacturing processes. These services enable OEMs to concentrate on their core competencies, such as
product development, marketing, and sales. As a result of this outsourcing strategy, many OEMs are divesting a
significant portion of their manufacturing facilities, and many newer OEMs are choosing to outsource rather than
add additional capital equipment and build internal manufacturing infrastructures.

Today, the EMS industry consists of companies that provide a broad range of services, including
engineering and design, new product introduction, printed circuit board assembly, or PCBA, box build, testing,
distribution and logistics, and aftermarket support services for OEMs in the electronics industry. The trend toward
outsourcing by OEMs has continued in the recent economic downturn, as OEMs have been under increased pressure
to pursue aggressive cost savings. In addition, OEMs have continued to move manufacturing programs to lower cost
regions and sought EMS providers with global footprints.

Although EMS industry revenue declined in recent years as a result of significant cut backs in customer
production requirements, industry revenue have slowly begun to increase again over the last year as inventories have
declined and customer production requirements generally have begun to stabilize. We believe further growth
opportunities exist for EMS providers to penetrate the worldwide electronics markets. We also believe that an EMS
provider with a global presence will grow faster than the industry average because of the ability to offer
multinational OEMs a comprehensive set of outsourced services through a single global manufacturing platform.




The factors driving OEMs to favor an outsourcing strategy include the following:

*  Reduce Operating Costs and Capital Investment. In the current economic environment, OEMs are
under significant pressure to reduce manufacturing costs and capital expenditures. EMS companies can
provide OEMs with flexible, cost-efficient manufacturing services. In addition, as OEM products have
become more technologically advanced, the manufacturing and system test processes have become
increasingly automated and complex, requiring significant capital investments. EMS companies enable
OEMs to access technologically advanced manufacturing and test equipment and facilities without
additional capital expenditures.

o Access Global Manufacturing Services. OEMs seek to reduce their manufacturing costs by having
EMS companies manufacture their products in the lowest cost locations that are appropriate for their
products and end customers. OEMs also are increasingly requiring particular products to be
manufactured simultaneously in multiple locations, often near end users, to bring products to market
more quickly, reduce shipping and logistics costs, and meet local product content requirements, Global
EMS companies are able to satisfy these requirements by capitalizing on their geographically dispersed
manufacturing facilities, including those in lower cost regions.

o Accelerate Time to Market. OEMs face increasingly short product life cycles resulting from increased
competition and rapid technological changes. As a result, OEMs must reduce the time required to bring
their products to market. OEMs can bring a product to market faster by using EMS companies’
expertise in new product introduction, including manufacturing design, engineering support, and
prototype production. OEMs can more quickly achieve volume production of their products by
capitalizing on EMS companies’ manufacturing expertise and global presence and infrastructure.

o Ability to Focus on Core Competencies. By shifting design, manufacturing, testing, logistics and
distribution, and aftermarket support functions to EMS companies, OEMs can focus their resources on
their core competencies, including product development, marketing, and sales.

e Access to Engineering and Manufacturing Technologies. OEMs continually seek access to
engineering expertise and manufacturing technologies necessary to build their increasingly complex
products, such as displays, as described below. OEMs are motivated to work with EMS companies to
gain access to their expertise in product design, assembly, manufacturing, and testing technologies.

®  Reduced Supply Chain Investment. Outsourcing to EMS companies allows OEMs to enter into short-
term manufacturing contracts and lower their investment in inventory and long-term manufacturing
assets , enabling them to increase their return on assets. As a result, OEMs can react more quickly to
changing market conditions and allocate capital to other core activities.

As part of our suite of electronics manufacturing services, our expertise in display systems differentiates us
from competitors. Displays are a prevalent feature in most OEM products. OEMs increasingly believe that a
display interface is important because it makes products more useful and easier to operate. Custom liquid crystal
displays, or LCDs, including both monochrome and color displays, address requirements for high performance,
increased information content, low power, and low cost. In addition, organic light emitting displays, or OLEDs,
which are a relatively new technology, are making advances in technology development, cost reduction, and power
consumption and are beginning to be used in mobile and other applications.

Custom-designed display modules provide OEMs a cost-effective means to differentiate their products
from the products of their competitors. In designing a product, an OEM must determine whether to use standard
"off-the-shelf" display modules or a custom display module. OEMs recognize that standard "off-the-shelf" displays
may be more cost-effective, but make it more difficult to differentiate their products from those of their competitors.

Our EMS services include custom display solutions and standard display products. Our focus is on LCD
and OLED display technologies. Historically, our emphasis was on small form factor displays, but we now offer our
customers monitors with large-format displays for use in industrial and governmental applications.

Strategy

Our objective is to be a leading provider of electronics manufacturing services to OEMs. We have a global
footprint, with operations in the United States, Europe, and several locations in Asia. We offer an increasingly




broad range of engineering and manufacturing capabilities, with a special emphasis and expertise in display
subsystems. Key elements of our strategy to achieve our objective include the following: !

Target Strong Customers in High-Growth Industries

We identify and target markets that we believe have the greatest long-term potential for growth. Our
current target markets are the automotive, computing, industrial, medical, telecom, and consumer markets. We
recognize that our growth and development is closely aligned with the growth and development of the customers
and markets we serve. Our broad range of services enables us to benefit from cross-marketing on a global and
market segment basis.

Within each market, we target companies that we believe would benefit from our global design and
manufacturing services and our unique expertise in display technologies. Targeted customers include mid-level
manufacturing companies. Our sales and engineering staffs then attempt to demonstrate the benefits that the
potential customer would derive by outsourcing to us the design and production of their products.

Once we establish a relationship with a new customer, we endeavor to develop new programs for other
product groups within the customer's business. For this reason, we specifically target customers with multiple
divisions or product lines.

Establish Close Relationships with Customers

We seek to establish strong and long-lasting customer relationships through our fundamental business
practice, which we refer to as "customer partnering." Customer partnering involves aligning our prospects with those
of our customers and seeking to make our engineering and production staffs seamless extensions of the product
design and production departments of our customers. This includes our engineers spending a significant portion of
their time assisting customers’ engineering efforts. In addition, our customers' engineers sometimes spend time in
our facilities.

We stress complete product life-cycle solutions to our customers beginning with early involvement in their
product engineering, design, and new product introduction cycles and continuing through manufacturing, testing,
logistics and distribution, and aftermarket support services. We view each customer's new product as our own and
take pride in creating and implementing innovative engineering solutions that differentiate the customer's product
from competitive products. In connection with this philosophy, we have positioned ourselves to provide a rapid
response to our customers and their worldwide operations.

We continually attempt to enhance the competitive position of our customers by offering innovative,
distinctive, and high-quality services on a timely and cost-effective basis. To do so, we work continually to improve
our productivity, lower our costs, and speed the delivery of our product solutions. We endeavor to streamline the
entire design through delivery process by maintaining an ongoing engineering and manufacturing improvement
effort.

We continue to provide customer support after product design has been completed and production has been
commenced. Through such follow-on activity, we conduct quality enhancement and cost-reduction efforts to
maintain the competitiveness of our customers' products.

We intend to continue our efforts to expand our customer base. We actively pursue new customers,
particularly those in growing and emerging markets that have volume requirements and require complex solutions.
We also evaluate the requirements of our customers and seek to provide them with additional services.

Leverage Display Capabilities

We leverage our traditional strength in designing and manufacturing display subsystems to offer customers
advanced solutions for their primary products. We provide this display expertise through our design centers located
in Tempe, Arizona, Beijing, China, Manila, the Philippines, and Marlborough, Massachusetts, and through our
manufacturing facilities in Beijing and Marlborough. We believe our display capabilities help our customers
improve product performance and reduce costs.

Exceed Customer Requirements through Speed and Efficiency

We emphasize innovative design and manufacturing techniques to improve the speed, efficiency, and
performance of our design and manufacturing services. These services enable our customers to address the pressure
to reduce the lead times for market introduction of their products. As part of our development process, we



continually improve and modify our design and manufacturing processes, controls, and methodology in an effort to
support our customers' requirements.

Pursue Strategic Acquisitions and Alliances

We intend to pursue strategic acquisitions, including OEM manufacturing divestitures, and alliances to
expand our customer base, to expand service offerings and geographic presence, to address new markets, to enhance
our technological capabilities, and to participate in other growth opportunities. We continuously review acquisition
opportunities.

Products and Services

We provide integrated design, manufacturing, and supply chain solutions that address all stages of our
customers' product life cycles, including advanced engineering and design, new product introduction and
prototyping, global supply chain management, printed circuit board assembly, display module assembly, RF module
assembly, box build, testing, logistics and distribution, and aftermarket services. We also provide a wide range of
aftermarket support, such as repairs, refurbishment, systems upgrades, and spare part manufacturing. By providing
these design, engineering, manufacturing, and logistics services, we enable our customers to focus on their core
competencies and to enhance their competitiveness by reducing the cost of their products, increasing product
performance and'functionality, and shortening the time from product conception to product introduction in the
marketplace. ‘

Engineering and Design. We offer engineering, design, and related services for new products and assist
our customers in.designing products for optimal manufacturing and testing. We have a full-service engineering
function in Penang. Our design for manufacturability services seeks to achieve defect-free and cost-effective
product designs, reduce product development cycles, create high production yields, and establish superior product
quality. Our design for testability service focuses on achieving the highest level of in-circuit and functional test
coverage prior to product shipment. Qur engineering and development activities also focus on display products
intended to meet'the requirements of our target markets. We add value for our customers through our ability to
integrate the design and production process, which reduces the time between product conception and market
introduction. Our emphasis on engineering and manufacturing services has positioned us to develop unique product
solutions for ouricustomers as they seek displays with more information content at lower cost.

New Product Introduction and Prototyping. We offer technical services that shorten the time it takes our
customers to introduce their products into the market and that helps them to optimize the commercial manufacturing
of their products. Our integrated approach draws on our engineering, design, supply chain management, prototyping
and production manufacturing, quality, and test engineering experience to enable a fast, cost-effective ramp to
volume production. We are able to assist our customers with component selection, materials strategies, supply chain
development, manufacturing process development, reliability modeling, quality plan development, and test plan
implementation.

Supply Chain Management. Our global supply chain services include materials, logistics, and storage of
materials for the manufacturing of custom products and deliveries of those products to our customers. Our supply
chain process starts by selecting suppliers that provide high levels of quality, flexibility, competitive prices, and
value added delivery programs, all on a global basis to service those needs. We communicate demand to these
suppliers in the most automated process available so that we can meet the needs of our customers for swift reaction
to change, maximize our inventory velocity and utilization, and create a valued customer-supplier relationship. We
have established with our suppliers various delivery mechanisms from supplier delivery vehicles to consolidated
shipping containers. These methods vary based on cost and proximity. These suppliers must also meet ongoing
reviews for total cost reduction, flexibility, and quality. Our global supply chain provides value to our customers by
increasing flexibility, reducing risk, improving time-to-market, and lowering cost.

Assembly and Manufacturing. We provide turnkey and consigned manufacturing and assembly services.
These services include printed circuit board and subsystems assembly, display modules and systems, RF modules,
box build, system and subsystem integration, downloading software, and building and configuring the final product.
We conduct our manufacturing in Redmond, Penang, Manila, and Beijing. We customize and ruggedize monitors in
Marlborough.

Display Products. Our EMS services include a line of standard display products incorporating both
monochrome and color LCDs and OLEDs, and a line of large format monitor products. These standard displays are




typically used for lower volume customers that do not have the resources to fund the development of a custom
display. We utilize inquiries from customers for standard display products to offer a manufacturing solution for the
customer’s entire product. In addition, volume increases for a customer’s product often lead to the customer seeking
a custom designed display to provide additional functionality and differentiation. Our large-format monitor products
offer customized solutions for the industrial, human machine interface, and kiosk markets and integrate various
levels of system solutions, including innovative features like wireless interfaces.

Product Testing. We offer in-circuit testing of printed circuit boards and functional testing of subsystems
and systems, which contributes significantly to our ability to deliver high-quality products on a consistent basis. We
work with our customers to develop product-specific test strategies. Our test capabilities include design for test and
manufacturing defect analysis, in-circuit development and implementation, and functional tests. We either custom
design test equipment and software ourselves or use test equipment and software provided by our customers. In
addition, we provide environmental stress tests to assure reliability.

Logistics and Distribution. We offer flexible services related to the configuration and shipment of our
customers' products. We perform final product packaging, out-of-box audit, and distribution services for completed
products as well as direct order fulfillment. We can deliver final products directly into our customers’ distribution
channels and 1o our customers' end-users. We believe that these services compliment our comprehensive
manufacturing solutions, enabling our customers to be more responsive to changing market demands and to get their
products to market more quickly with less total cost.

Aftermarket Service. We provide a wide range of aftermarket services, including repair, refurbishment,
remanufacturing, system upgrades, and spare part manufacturing. These services are supported by specific
information systems and testing technologies and can be tailored to meet specific customer requirements.

Other Business Factors
Sales and Marketing

We achieve worldwide sales coverage through a direct sales force, and direct sale representives, which
focuses on generating new accounts. Program managers are responsible for managing relationships with existing
customers and making follow-on sales. Application engineers work with their engineering counterparts at customers
to insure all technical details are addressed. In addition to our sales force, program managers, and application
engineers, our executive staff plays an integral role in our sales efforts.

Our sales to customers in North America represented approximately 14.0% of net sales in 2002 and 54.0%
of net sales in 2003. Our sales to customers in Asia represented approximately 58.4% of net sales in 2002 and
20.5% of net sales in 2003. Our sales to customers in Europe represented approximately 27.6% of net sales in 2002
and 25.5% of net sales in 2003.

Customers

Customers include large multinational and smaller OEMs that have chosen outsourcing as a core
manufacturing strategy. We service a diverse range of industries, including automotive, medical, industrial,
telecommunications, consumer, and computing. We believe we are able to offer customers an outsourcing solution
that involves lower costs than typically would be provided by their internal operations. We seek to differentiate
ourselves from our competitors by providing advanced methodologies and capabilities and exceptional customer
focus by integrating our services into our customers' operations. Additionally, we also offer unique expertise in
designing and manufacturing display systems and RF modules. We believe that providing display modules as part
of our EMS offering provides us with a unique value proposition in our target markets, The printed circuit board
assembly and the display represent a large portion of an OEM's bill of materials, thus allowing us to offer "one-stop
shopping.”

In fiscal 2003, our ten largest customers accounted for approximately 79% of our net sales. Our largest
customers during fiscal 2003 were Avocent and Vitelcom, accounting for approximately 23% and 13% of net sales,
respectively. No other customer accounted for more than 10% of net sales in fiscal 2003.




The folléwing table lists in alphabetical order a representative sample of our largest customers in fiscal
2003 and the products of those customers for which we provide manufacturing services:

Customer End Products
Avocent KVM (keyboard, video, mouse) server switches
Hypercom POS (point of sale) terminals
Datex-Ohmeda Medical equipment
General Electric White goods
Motorola Cellular phones; telematics
Microtune RF modules
Vitelcom Wireless handsets
Watchguard VPN (virtual private network) boxes
Backlog

As of December 31, 2003, we had a backlog of orders of approximately $46.7 million. The backlog of
orders as of December 31, 2002 was approximately $32.0 million. Our backlog consists of product orders for which
confirmed purchase orders or fixed forecasts have been received and which are scheduled for shipment within 12
months. Orders are now given with only a six to eight week lead time. Some of our largest customers provide
purchase orders of only one week. Most orders are subject to rescheduling or cancellation by the customer with
limited penalties.” Because of the possibility of customer changes in delivery schedules or cancellations and
potential delays in product shipments, our backlog as of a particular date may not be indicative of net sales for any
succeeding period.

Components and Raw Materials

We purchase raw materials and electronic components from manufacturers and distribution companies. The
key electronic components we purchase include printed circuit boards, specialized components, such as application-
specific integrated circuits, LCD and OLED glass, semiconductors, interconnect products, electronic subassemblies
(including memory modules, power supply modules, and cable and wire harnesses), inductors, resistors and
capacitors. Along with these electronic components, we also purchase components for use in higher-level assembly
and manufacturing. These components include injection-molded plastic, pressure-formed plastics, vacuum-formed
plastics, sheet metal fabrications, aluminum extrusions, die castings, and various other hardware and fastener
components. These components range from standard to highly customized, and they vary widely in terms of market
volatility and price.

From time to time, allocation of components by suppliers becomes an integral part of the electronics
industry, and component shortages can occur with respect to particular components. In response, we actively
manage our business in a way to minimize our exposure to materials and component shortages. We create strong
supplier alliances to ensure, to the extent possible, a steady flow of components at competitive prices. We have also
established and continue to expand our strategic relationships with international purchasing offices, and we attempt
to leverage our design position with suppliers.

Some of these components and raw materials are standard and others are highly customized and vary
widely in terms of market availability and price, Our procurement strategy is to secure alternative sources of
supplies for the majority of these materials. Many of these materials, however, must be obtained from foreign
suppliers, which subjects us to the risks inherent in obtaining materials from foreign sources, including supply
interruptions and currency fluctuations. Our suppliers generally are meeting our requirements, and we believe our
strategic supplier alliances have further strengthened our relations with offshore suppliers. We have experienced
material shortages in the past. Those shortages prevented us from meeting customer demand for certain services.
Similar shortages in the future could have a material adverse effect on our business.

We attempt to procure components and other raw materials only when a purchase order or forecast is
received from a customer. We experience component shortages and longer lead times for various components and




raw materials from time to time, We generally have been able to reduce the impact of shortages by working with
customers to reschedule deliveries and by working with suppliers to provide the needed components using just-in-
time vendor managed or consigned inventory programs,

Intellectual Property

We own various service marks, including "Three-Five Systems," and its logo. Although we own certain
patents, they are not currently material to our business. We do not have any material copyrights.

Information Technology

We plan to implement in 2005 a new enterprise resource planning, or ERP, platform for certain of our
locations. This ERP platform is intended to augment our management information systems and includes software
from SAP and several other vendors. The ERP platform is intended to enhance and standardize our ability to
translate information globally from production facilities into operational and financial information and to create a
consistent set of core business applications at our worldwide facilities, although we will not necessarily convert all
of our facilities to the same system. We believe that the related licenses are of a general commercial character on
terms customary for these types of agreements. During fiscal 2005, we plan to convert two manufacturing facilities
to the new ERP platform. We anticipate converting additional facilities to the new ERP platform in 2006 and 2007.
Our conversion timetable and project scope remain subject to change based upon our evolving needs and sales
levels.

Employees

Our employees are one of our primary strengths, and we make considerable efforts to maintain a well-
qualified staff. We have been able to offer enhanced career opportunities to many of our employees. Our human
resources department identifies career objectives and monitors specific skill development for employees with
potential for advancement. We invest at all levels of the organization to ensure that employees are well trained.

We currently employ approximately1,500 full-time employees. Given the quick response time required by
our customers, we seek to maintain flexibility to scale our operations as necessary to maximize efficiency. To do so,
we use skilled temporary labor in addition to our full-time employees. None of our employees are covered by union
agreements. We have no history of labor disputes at any of our facilities. We believe that our employee
relationships are good.

Competition

We believe Benchmark Electronics, Plexus, Pemstar, Suntron, and other smaller, proximity-based domestic
EMS providers constitute our principal competitors. In addition, we believe that Philips, Samsung, Seiko-Epson,
Hosiden, Optrex, Seiko Instruments, Wintek, and Sharp constitute the principal competitors for our EMS services
involving display solutions. We compete primarily on the basis of engineering, testing, and production capabilities;
technological know-how; the responsiveness, quality, flexibility, and price of our services; and geographical
location. Many of our competitors have substantially greater manufacturing, financial, and research and
development resources than we possess and offer broader geographic operations and a greater range of services than
we do. We also face competition from the manufacturing operations of current and potential customers, which
continually evaluate the benefits of internal manufacturing versus outsourcing.

Acquisitions and Strategic Ventures

In September 2002, we purchased the assets and ongoing business of AVT, located in Marlborough,
Massachusetts, a privately held company that specialized in the design and integration of complex, high-resolution
display systems. As a result, we now design and provide customized and ruggedized flat panel, touchscreen, and
rackmount systems for OEMs in the industrial and medical markets. We outsource display components from a
variety of companies including Sony, Sharp, NEC, LG, and Samsung. The purchase price of the acquisition was
$12.0 million, which we paid entirely in cash.




In December 2002, we purchased the stock of ETMA Corporation, located in Redmond, Washington, a
privately held electronics manufacturer for OEM customers in the computer peripheral, medical, and
Internet/Network security industries. As a result, we now offer the manufacturing capabilities of five surface mount
manufacturing lines, including one dedicated to new product introduction and prototyping activity. We also provide
engineering support, automated printed circuit board assembly, in-circuit and functional testing, systems integration
and box build, complete supply chain management, and turnkey packaging and fulfillment services. The purchase
price of the ETMA acquisition was $38.1 million, which we paid entirely in cash.

In January 2003, we signed licensing and manufacturing agreements with Data International Co., Ltd. of
Taiwan. Under those agreements, we became the exclusive channel in the Americas for standard and custom LCD
products manufactured by Data International. We also have the right to sell those products through our worldwide
channels. The agreements provide us with access to a full suite of standard display products that round out our
existing standard product portfolio. In conjunction with the agreement, we established a sales office in Orlando,
Florida, and hired sales and applications engineering personnel from a distributor that had previously supported Data
International’s products. The cost of the license was $3.9 million, of which $1.0 million was paid upon signing and
$1.4 million was paid in the first quarter of 2004. The remaining $1.5 million is due in January 2005. The
remaining balance due is subject to reduction if certain margin targets are not met.

In March 2003, we signed an agreement with Microtune, Inc. in which we agreed to manufacture,
assemble, and test Microtune’s radio frequency, or RF, tuner modules and wireless module products in our
manufacturing facility in Manila, the Philippines. As part of the agreement, Microtune sold to us certain of its own
equipment and inventory for $8.2 million, of which $2.7 million was a note payable due in September 2003, and
contracted with us to provide 100% of Microtune’s current demand for fully assembled RF subsystems. We also
hired approximately 500 Microtune employees in Manila. In October 2003, we paid off approximately $300,000 of
the $2.7 million note payable to Microtune and entered into an agreement to cancel the remaining $2.4 million
balance on that note in exchange for the return of certain excess inventory to Microtune. As a result of this
transaction, we now provide 100% of the manufacturing outsourcing for Microtune’s RF module products.

In April 2003, we acquired the business and certain assets of Unico Technology Bhd.,, a privately held
Malaysian company located in Penang. Unico was an electronic manufacturer for OEM customers in the computer,
computer peripheral, and communications industries. The Unico business was acquired by TFS Electronics
Manufacturing Services Sdn. Bhd., or TFS-Malaysia, a joint venture owned 60% by an overseas TFS subsidiary and
40% by Unico Holdings Bhd., the former parent of Unico. Unico Holdings is the investment arm of the Chinese
Chamber of Commerce of Malaysia. Our share of the initial cost of capitalizing TFS-Malaysia was $3.8 million and
Unico Holdings’ share was $2.5 million, most of which will be used for working capital. TFS-Malaysia purchased
$4.1 million in inventory from Unico, of which $2.7 million was paid at the time of the purchase and $1.4 million
was subsequently paid. No advance payment was required for the acquisition of the property, plant, and equipment
of Unico, all of which is leased from the seller. The equipment lease is accounted for as a capital lease payable by
TFS-Malaysia. The principal balance on that lease was $8.1 million as of December 31, 2003.

In February 2004, we entered into a transaction with Integrex, a Seattle-based electronics manufacturing
services company liquidating their business. Under that transaction, we bought the raw materials inventory of
Integrex and hired certain of their employees. We also obtained the rights to most of their customers and agreed with
those customers that we would manufacture those customers’ products in our Redmond manufacturing facility. In
exchange for those customer rights, we agreed to pay a license fee for between 15 and 24 months based on revenue
actually received by us from the sale of products to the former Integrex customers. A portion of that license fee was
paid in advance at closing.

Government Regulation

Our operations are subject to certain federal, state, and local regulatory requirements relating to
environmental, waste management, health, and safety matters. We believe we operate in substantial compliance
with all applicable requirements. There can be no assurance, however, that material costs and liabilities will not
arise from complying with these or from complying with new, modified, or more stringent requirements. In
addition, our past, current, or future operations may give rise to claims of exposure by employees or the public or to
other claims or liabilities relating to environmental, waste management, or health and safety concerns.




Our operations create a small amount of hazardous waste, including various epoxies, gases, inks, solvents,
and other wastes. The amount of hazardous waste we produce may increase in the future depending on changes in
our operations. The general issue of the disposal of hazardous waste has received increasing focus from federal,
state, local, and international governments and agencies and has been subject to increasing regulation.

Executive Officers

The following table sets forth certain information regarding our executive officers:

Name Age Position
Jack L. Saltich .....coooevevvevvininne 60 President, Chief Executive Officer, and Director
Jeffrey D. Buchanan .................. 48 Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Secretary,
Treasurer, and Director
Carl E. Derrington .......cccocevnnven. 53 Senior Vice President, Chief Manufacturing Officer
Joe D. Tanner.........cococvnenearnenas 57 Senior Vice President, Electronics Manufacturing Services
Van H. Potter........coccvvevcirnnnn. 45 Senior Vice President-Display Products

Jack L. Saltich has served as a director and the President and Chief Executive Officer of our company since
July 1999. Mr. Saltich served as Vice President of Advanced Micro Devices from May 1993 until July 1999; as
Executive Vice President of Applied Micro Circuits Corp. from January 1991 until March 1993; and as Vice
President of VLSI from July 1988 until January 1991. Mr. Saltich held a variety of executive positions for Motorola
from July 1971 until June 1988. These positions included serving as an Engineering Manager from May 1974 until
January 1980, an Operation Manager from January 1980 until May 1982, a Vice President and Director of the
Bipolar Technology Center from May 1982 until June 1986, and a Vice President and Director of the Advanced
Product Research and Development Laboratory from June 1986 until June 1988. Mr. Saltich serves as the Chairman
of the Board of Brillian Corporation; as a member of the board of directors of Immersion Corporation, a public
company that develops, licenses, and markets haptic technology and products; and as a member of the board of
directors of Vitex Systems, Inc., a private company that commercializes transparent ultra-barrier films for use in flat
panel displays.

Jeffrey D. Buchanan has served as a director and Executive Vice President of our company since June
1998; as Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer since June 1996; and as Secretary since May 1996. Mr. Buchanan
served as our Vice President — Finance, Administration, and Legal from June 1996 until July 1998 and as our Vice
President — Legal and Administration from May 1996 to June 1996. Mr. Buchanan served from June 1986 until
May 1996 as a business lawyer with O'Connor, Cavanagh, Anderson, Killingsworth & Beshears. Mr. Buchanan was
associated with the international law firm of Davis Wright Tremaine from 1984 to 1986, and he was a senior staff
person at Deloitte & Touche from 1982 to 1984,

Carl E. Derrington has served as our Chief Manufacturing Officer since May 1999. Dr. Derrington joined
our company in 1986 as a Director of Research and Development. Since that time, Dr. Derrington has served as a
Plant Manager from January 1986 until September 1987, a Director of Engineering from September 1987 until
August 1989, a Director of Manufacturing from August 1989 until April 1996, and a Director of Manufacturing
Engineering from April 1996 until April 1999.

Joe D. Tanner has served as Senior Vice President, Electronic Manufacturing Services, since December -
2002. From 2001 until 2002, he served as Vice President of ETMA Corporation. From 1992 until 2001, Mr. Tanner
was President-International and Chief Operating Officer of the Drypers Corporation, and was Managing
Director/CEO of Drypers' manufacturing companies in Malaysia, Brazil, Puerto Rico, and Argentina. Mr. Tanner
was an executive officer of Drypers Corporation at the time that it filed for Chapter 11 under the U.S. bankruptcy
laws. That company filed for bankruptcy protection as a result of patent litigation filed against it, which litigation
was subsequently settled in connection with the sale of the operating companies and liquidation of Drypers. From
1988 untit 1992, he was Managing Partner in the Vancouver Office of Williams Kastner & Gibbs law firm. Mr.




Tanner was President, Colombia River Economic Development Council from 1983 until 1988 and President and
CEO of U-Cart Concrete Systems, Inc. from 1978 until 1983.

Van H. Potter has served as Senior Vice President-Display Products since February 2003. Mr. Potter was
Market Development Manager and Project Manager for Rogers Corporation, a manufacturer of specialty polymer
composite materials, from February 2002 until February 2003, From April 1994 until February 2002, Mr. Potter
held a variety of management, marketing, and new business development positions with Durel Corp., a joint venture
between Rogers Corporation and 3M Corporation.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On September 1, 2003, we transferred all of the net assets of our microdisplay division, plus approximately
$20.9 million in cash, to a newly created Delaware corporation called Brillian Corporation. On September 15, 2003,
we spun off Brillian by distributing all of the outstanding common stock of Brillian to our stockholders on a pro rata
basis, with each of our stockholders receiving one share of Brillian common stock for each four shares of our
common stock. Brillian is now traded on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “BRLC.” Brillian had $44.1
million of net assets on the spin-off date. For more information on the reason for the spin-off, as well as the
description of business and risks associated with the spin-off, please refer to the Form 10 and the related
amendments and associated documents filed by Brillian with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The
microdisplay business that we transferred to Brillian is now reported in our consolidated financial statements as
Discontinued Operations.

RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the following factors, in addition to those discussed elsewhere in this report,
in evaluating our company and our business.

We substantially expanded our electronics manufacturing services business.

We recently expanded our electronics manufacturing services business through our acquisitions of ETMA
Corporation and Unico. Among other things, we will be required to integrate the operations of those companies
with our high-volume manufacturing operations in Manila and Beijing.

Substantially expanding our electronics manufacturing services has resulted in various risks, including the
following:

e the integration of worldwide operations;

¢ the information technology challenges relating to the integration of disparate worldwide systems.
. thé ability to procure and install necessary additional equipment;

e the ability to hire, train, and manage additional manufacturing personnel;

e production delays, unfavorable manufacturing yields, and lengthening delivery schedules;

e the ability to service widespread customers in varied industries;

o the need to satisfy increasingly rapid product turnaround time and rapid increases in production levels;
s the volume of customer orders relative to our capacity;

. thp typically short life cycle of our customers' products;

»  changes in our sales mix to our customers;

. tﬁe timing of our expenditures in anticipation of future orders;

e our effectiveness in managing manufacturing processes;

¢ changes in cost and availability of labor and components;
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e changes in economic conditions; and

¢ local events that affect our production volume.

The electronics manufacturing services industry is impacted by the state of the electronics industry, general
U.8. and global economic conditions, and worldwide events. A continued slowdown in the U.S. or global
economies or the particular industries served by us may result in customers reducing orders. Our revenue may be
adversely impacted by the slowdown in the worldwide electronics markets, which have been subject to reduced end-
market demand and reduced capital spending.

We face intense competition.

We serve intensely competitive industries that are characterized by price erosion, rapid technological
change, and competition from major domestic and international companies. As a result of the expansion of our
electronic manufacturing services business, we are now competing more directly against large EMS companies,
which have greater market recognition, larger customer bases, and substantially greater financial, technical,
marketing, distribution, and other resources than we possess. We compete primarily on the basis of our engineering,
design, testing, and production capabilities; our technological know-how, especially in display and RF modules; the
responsiveness, quality, flexibility, and price of our services; and our geographic locations. Certain sectors of the
EMS industry are currently experiencing increased price competition, and a continuation of this increased level of
competition would adversely affect our revenue and gross margin. In some cases, our smaller size may mean that
we are required to accept less than favorable contractual obligations with larger vendors and customers. We also
face competition from the manufacturing operations of current and potential customers, which continually evaluate
the benefits of internal manufacturing versus outsourcing.

Prior to the recent current economic downturn, many participants in the EMS industry, including us,
substantially expanded their manufacturing capacity. In the last few years, however, the overall demand for
electronics manufacturing services has decreased, resulting in increased capacity and substantial pricing pressures,
which has harmed our operating results.

Our ability to compete successfully depends on a number of factors, both within and outside our control.
These factors include the following:

e  our success in providing design and manufacturing services, and in incorporating new technologies,
processes, and product solutions;

e our ability to address the needs of our customers;

o foreign currency devaluations, especially in Asian currencies, such as the Japanese yen, the Korean
won and the Taiwanese dollar, which may cause foreign competitors' products to be priced
significantly lower than our product solutions;

* the quality of our customer services;
e our efficiency of production;
e product or technology introductions by our competitors; and

o the pricing, quality, performance, reliability, timeliness, technological sophistication, geographic
location, and efficiency of our design and manufacturing services.

The majority of our sales come from a small number of customers and our sales could decline significantly if
we lose any of these customers. '

Sales to our ten largest customers have represented a significant percentage of our net sales in recent
periods. Qur ten largest customers accounted for approximately 79% and 92% of net sales in fiscal 2003 and fiscal
2002, respectively, Our largest customers during fiscal 2003 were Avocent and Vitelcom, accounting for
approximately 23% and 13% of net sales, respectively. Our largest customer during fiscal 2002 was Motorola,
accounting for approximately 78% of net sales. No other customer accounted for more than 10% of net sales in
fiscal 2003 or fiscal 2002.
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Our principal customers have varied from year to year, and our principal customers may not continue to
purchase services from us at current levels, if at all. Significant reductions in sales to any of these customers, or the
loss of major customers, would seriously harm our business. If we are not able to timely replace expired, canceled or
reduced contracts with new business, our revenue could be harmed.

We are subject to lengthy development periods and product acceptance cycles.

OEMSs make the determination during their product development programs whether to utilize our services
or pursue other alternatives. This requires us to make significant investments of time and capital well before our
customers introduce their products utilizing our services and before we can be sure that we will generate any
significant revenue from our customers or even recover our investment.

During aicustomer's entire product development process, we face the risk that our services will fail to meet
our customer's technical, performance, or cost requirements or will be replaced by an alternative solution. Even if
we provide our services in a manner satisfactory to our customer, the customer may delay or terminate its product
development efforts. The occurrence of any of these events would adversely affect our operating results. The
lengthy development period also means that it is difficult to immediately replace an unexpected loss of existing
business.

We do not have long-term commitments from our customers.

Our customers generally do not provide us with firm, long-term volume commitments. In addition, the
worldwide adverse economic slowdown that started in 2001 has led to substantially shortened lead times on
purchase orders. Although we sometimes enter into manufacturing contracts with our customers, these contracts
clarify order lead times, inventory risk allocation, and similar matters rather than provide firm, long-term volume
commitments. As a result, customers can generally cancel commitments or reduce or delay orders at any time. The
cancellation, delay, or reduction of customer commitments could result in reduced revenue and in our holding
excess and obsolete inventory or having unabsorbed manufacturing capacity. The large percentage of our revenue
from customers in the electronics industry, which is subject to severe competitive pressures, rapid techno]oglcal
change, and product obsolescence, increases our inventory and overhead risks.

In addition, we make significant decisions, including determining the levels of business that we will seek
or accept, production schedules, component procurement commitments, facility requirements, personnel needs, and
other resource requirements, based on our estimates of customer requirements. The short-term nature of our
customers' commitments and the possibility of rapid changes in demand for their products reduce our ability to
estimate accurately the future requirements of those customers. Because many of our costs and operating expenses
are relatively fixed, a reduction in customer demand can harm our gross margins and operating results.

On occasion, customers may require rapid increases in production, which can stress our resources and
reduce operating margins. Although we have increased our manufacturing capacity over the past few years, we may
not have sufficient capacity at any given time to meet all of our customers' demands or to meet the requirements of a
specific project.

Our operating results have been materially and adversely affected in the past as a result of the failure to
obtain anticipated orders and deferrals or cancellations of purchase commitments because of changes in customer
requirements. For example, we have made announcements in the past that sales would not meet our expectations
because of delays in customer programs.

We depend on the market acceptance of the products of our customers.

In most instances, we do not provide services to end users. As a result, our success depends almost entirely
upon the widespread market acceptance of our customers' products. Any significant slowdown in the demand for
our customers' products would adversely affect our business.

Because our success depends on the widespread market acceptance of our customers' products, we must
identify industries that have significant growth potential and establish relationships with OEMs in those industries.
Our failure to identify potential growth opportunities or establish relationships with OEMs in those industries would
adversely affect our business.

12




Our dependence on the success of the products of our customers exposes us to a variety of risks, including
the following:

e our ability to provide significant design and manufacturing services for customers on a timely and
cost-effective basis;

e  our success in maintaining customer satisfaction with our design and manufacturing services;

* our ability to match our design and manufacturing capacity with customer demand and to maintain
satisfactory delivery schedules;

¢ customer order patterns, changes in order mix, and the level and timing of orders placed by customers
that we can complete in a quarter; and

o the cyclical nature of the industries and markets we serve.
Our failure to address these risks may cause our sales to decline.
Shortages of components and materials may delay or reduce our sales and increase our costs.

We rely on a limited number of suppliers for many components used in our manufacturing and assembly
processes. We especially depend on a small number of strategic suppliers for key components such as LCD glass
and drivers. We do not have any long-term supply agreements. At various times, there have been shortages of some
of the key electronic components. Our inability to obtain sufficient quantities of components and other materials to
provide our electronics manufacturing services could result in reduced, delayed, or lost orders, increased inventory,
and underutilized manufacturing capacity. Any reduction, delay, or loss of customer orders could adversely impact
our operating results. In addition, we may not be able to pass on component and materials price increases to our
customers, particularly in the case of turnkey manufacturing agreements. We obtain many of the materials we use
from a limited number of foreign suppliers, particularly suppliers located in Asia. As a result, we are subject to
increased costs, supply interruptions, and difficulties in obtaining materials. Our customers also may encounter
difficulties or increased costs in obtaining from others the materials necessary to produce their products into which
our product solutions are incorporated.

Our operating results may be adversely affected by excess inventory.

We typically purchase components and other materials in anticipation of customer orders based on
customer forecasts. For a variety of reasons, such as decreased OEM customer or end-user demand, we may not be
able to utilize various components or other supplies that we have purchased in anticipation of customer demand. In
such event, we could attempt to recoup our materials and manufacturing costs by various means, including returning
components to our suppliers, disposing of excess inventory through other channels, or attempting to require our
OEM customers to purchase or otherwise compensate us for such excess inventory. These efforts, however, may
not be successful. To the extent we are unsuccessful in recouping our materials and manufacturing costs, our
operating results would be adversely affected and excess inventory would reduce our working capital.

Our revenue and gross margins depend upon our ability to utilize our manufacturing capacity.

Our revenue and gross margins depend to a great extent upon our ability to utilize our manufacturing
capacity. We must balance the need to maintain manufacturing capacity to fulfill new customers’ orders while
maintaining sufficient utilization of our manufacturing capacity to cover our fixed overhead expenses. Like most
EMS companies under current market conditions, we have recently suffered from underutilized manufacturing
capacity. As a result, we are consolidating our display module manufacturing operations in Beijing and closing
those operations in Manila. There is no assurance that this consolidation will resolve our overcapacity issues or that
we will not experience difficulties in satisfying any significant additional customer demand for our manufacturing
services.

We must maintain satisfactory manufacturing yields and capacity.

Our inability to maintain high levels of productivity or satisfactory delivery schedules at our manufacturing
facilities in Manila, Beijing, Penang, Redmond, or Marlborough would adversely affect our operating results. The
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design and manufacture of electronic devices are highly complex processes that are sensitive to a wide variety of
factors, including the level of contaminants in the manufacturing environment, impurities in the materials used, and
the performance of personnel and equipment. These problems could be heightened by moving the manufacturing of
products to different facilities. As is typical in the EMS industry, at times we have experienced lower than
anticipated manufacturing yields and lengthening of delivery schedules,

Any problems with our manufacturing operations could result in the lengthening of our delivery schedules,
reductions in the quality or performance of our design and manufacturing services, and reduced customer
satisfaction.

Products we manufacture may contain design or manufacturing defects, which could result in reduced
demand for our services and liability claims against us.

We manufacture products to our customers' specifications, which are highly complex and may at times
contain design or'manufacturing errors or failures. Any defects in the products we manufacture, or in the products
we purchase, whether caused by a design, manufacturing, or component failure or error, may result in delayed
services to customers or reduced or cancelled customer orders. If these defects occur in large quantities or too
frequently, our business reputation also may be impaired. In addition, these defects may result in liability claims
against us.

Our inability to maintain our technological expertise in design and manufacturing processes would adversely
affect our competitive condition.

Our success depends on our ability to develop and provide design and manufacturing services that meet the
changing needs of our customers. This requires us to anticipate and respond to technological changes in design and
manufacturing processes in a cost-effective and timely manner. To achieve this goal, we continually evaluate the
advantages and feasibility of new product design and manufacturing processes. We cannot assure you that we will
be successful.

We are exposedito intangible asset impairment.

We have a substantial amount of intangible assets. These intangible assets are generally attributable to
acquisitions and represent the difference between the purchase price paid for the acquired businesses and the fair
value of net tangible assets of the acquired businesses. We are required to evaluate goodwill for impairment on at
least an annual basis, and other intangibles whenever changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable from estimated future cash flows. As a result of our annual and other periodic evaluations,
we may determine that the intangible asset values should be written down to their fair values, which could result in
material charges, that could be adverse to our operating results and financial position.

We face risks associated with international operations.

Our manufacturing operations in Manila, Penang, and Beijing, and our sales and distribution operations in
Europe and Asia, create a number of logistical and communications challenges. Our international operations also
expose us to various economic, political, and other risks, including the following:

¢ management of a multi-national organization;

¢ compliance with local laws and regulatory requirements as well as changes in those laws and
requirements;

¢ imposition of restrictions on currency conversion or the transfer of funds;

¢ the possibility of appropriation of our assets without just compensation;

e transportation delays or interruptions and other effects of less developed infrastructures;
¢ foreign exchange rate fluctuations;

e limitations on imports and exports;
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+ difficulties in staffing and managing foreign personnel and diverse cultures;
¢ employment and severance issues;

+ overlap of tax issues;

e tariffs and duties;

* possible employee turnover or labor unrest;

o the burdens and costs of compliance with a variety of foreign laws; and

s political or economic instability in countries in which we conduct business, includes possible terrorist
acts,

Changes in policies by the United States or foreign governments resulting in, among other things, increased
duties, higher taxation, currency conversion limitations, restrictions on the transfer or repatriation of funds,
limitations on imports or exports, or the expropriation of private enterprises also could have a material adverse effect
on us. Any actions by our host countries to reverse policies that encourage foreign investment or foreign trade also
could adversely affect our operating results. In addition, U.S. trade policies, such as "most favored nation" status
and trade preferences for certain Asian nations, could affect the attractiveness of our services to our U.S. customers.

We face risks associated with international trade and currency exchange.

Political and economic conditions abroad may adversely affect our foreign manufacturing and sales
operations. Protectionist trade legislation in either the United States or foreign countries, such as a change in the
current tariff structures, export or import compliance laws, or other trade policies, could adversely affect our ability
to provide design and manufacturing services in foreign markets or for foreign customers and to purchase materials
or equipment from foreign suppliers.

While we transact business predominantly in U.S. Dollars and bill and collect most of our sales in U.S.
Dollars, we collect a portion of our revenue in non-U.S. currencies, such as the Chinese Renminbi. In the future,
customers increasingly may make payments in non-U.S. currencies, such as the Euro. In addition, we account for a
portion of our costs, such as payroll, rent, and indirect operating costs, in non-U.S. currencies, including Philippine
Pesos, British Pounds Sterling, Malaysian Ringgit, and Chinese Renminbi.

Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates could affect our cost of goods and operating margins and
could result in exchange losses. In addition, currency devaluation can result in a loss to us if we hold deposits of
that currency. Hedging foreign currencies can be difficult, especially if the currency is not freely traded. We cannot
predict the impact of future exchange rate fluctuations on our operating results.

The risks described above are particularly important since sales outside North America represented 46% of
our net sales in 2003 and 86% of our net sales in 2002. Sales in foreign markets, primarily Europe and Asia, to
OEMs based in the United States accounted for almost all of our international sales in both of these periods.

Our operating results have significant fluctuations.

In addition to the variability resulting from the short-term nature of our customers' commitments, other
factors contribute to significant periodic and seasonal quarterly fluctuations in our results of operations. These
factors include the following:

s the timing of customer orders;
e the volume of customer orders relative to our capacity;
e changes in economic conditions generally or in our customers' markets;

e product introductions and market acceptance of new products or new generations of products by
customers and their competitors;

e evolution in the life cycles of customers' products;
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o timing of expenditures in anticipation of future customer orders;
. ability to manage inventory and inventory obsolescence;

e effectiveness in managing manufacturing processes and costs;

e changes in cost and availability of [abor and components;

. produbt mix or our customers’ orders;

e pricing and other competitive pressures; and

s  changes or anticipated changes in economic conditions.

Accordingly, you should not rely on the results of any past periods as an indication of our future
performance. It is'likely that in some future period, our operating results may be below expectations of public
market analysts or investors. If this occurs, our stock price may decline.

We must effectively manage our growth.

To remain competitive, we must continue to make significant investments in systems, equipment, and
facilities. In addition, we must commit additional significant sales and marketing resources to maintain our growth
rates. As a result of the increase in fixed costs and operating expenses, our failure to increase sufficiently our net
sales to offset these increased costs would adversely affect our operating results.

The failure to manage our growth effectively could adversely affect our operations. We have substantially
increased the number of our manufacturing and design programs and plan to expand further the number and
diversity of our programs in the future. Our ability to manage our planned growth effectively will require us to:

e enhance our operational, financial, and management systems;
e expand our facilities and equipment; and

e successfully hire, train, and motivate additional employees, including the technical personnel necessary
to operate our production facilities in Redmond, Marlborough, Manila, Penang, and Beijing.

The expansion and diversification of our service and customer base may result in increases in our overhead
and selling expenses. We also may be required to increase staffing and other expenses as well as our expenditures
on capital equipment and leasehold improvements in order to meet the anticipated demand of our customers.
Customers, however, generally do not commit to firm production schedules for more than a short time in advance.
Any increase in expenditures in anticipation of future orders that do not materialize would adversely affect our
profitability. Customers also may require rapid increases in design and production services that place an excessive
short-term burden on our resources.

From time to time, we may seck additional equity or debt financing to provide for the capital expenditures
required to maintain or expand our design and production facilities and equipment. We cannot predict the timing or
amount of any such capital requirements at this time. If such financing is not available on satisfactory terms, we
may be unable to expand our business or to develop new business at the rate desired and our operating results may
suffer. Debt financing increases expenses and must be repaid regardless of operating results. Equity financing
could result in additional dilution to existing stockholders.

We depend onikey personnel.

Our development and operations depend substantially on the efforts and abilities of our senior management
and technical personnel. The competition for qualified management and technical personnel is intense. The loss of
services of one or more of our key employees or the inability to add key personnel could have a material adverse
effect on us. Although we maintain non-competition and nondisclosure covenants with certain key personnel, we do
not have any fixed-term agreements with, or key person life insurance covering, any officer or employee.
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Any acquisitions that we undertake could be difficult to integrate, disrupt our business, dilute stockholder
value, and harm our operating results.

We plan to continue to review opportunities to buy other businesses or technologies that would
complement our current manufacturing services, expand the breadth of our markets, enhance our technical
capabilities, or otherwise offer other growth opportunities. In the past 18 months, we have acquired businesses,
technologies, assets, and goodwill from five companies, and we will likely buy businesses, assets, or technologies in
the future. If we make any future acquisitions, we could issue stock that would dilute existing stockholders'
percentage ownership, incur substantial debt, or assume contingent liabilities. Our recent acquisitions, as well as
potential future potential acquisitions, involve numerous risks, including the following:

e problems integrating the purchased operations, technologies, products, systems or services with our
own;

¢ unanticipated costs or hidden liabilities associated with the acquisition;
s diversion of management's attention from our existing businesses;

* potential compliance issues with regard to acquired companies that did not have adequate internal
controls;

e adverse effects on existing business relationships with suppliers and customers;
o risks associated with entering markets in which we have no or limited prior experience; and
* potential loss of key employees and customers of purchased organizations.

Our acquisition strategy entails reviewing and potentially reorganizing acquired business operations,
cosporate infrastructure and systems, and financial controls. Unforeseen expenses, difficulties, and delays
frequently encountered in connection with rapid expansion through acquisitions could inhibit our growth and
negatively impact our profitability. We may be unable to identify suitable acquisition candidates or to complete the
acquisitions of candidates that we identify. Increased competition for acquisition candidates may increase purchase
prices for acquisitions to levels beyond our financial capability or to levels that would not result in the returns
required by our acquisition criteria. In addition, we may encounter difficulties in integrating the operations of
acquired businesses with our own operations or managing acquired businesses profitably without substantial costs,
delays, or other operational or financial problems.

We may issue common or preferred stock and incur substantial indebtedness in making future acquisitions.
The size, timing, and integration of any future acquisitions may cause substantial fluctuations in operating results
from quarter to quarter. Consequently, operating results for any quarter may not be indicative of the results that may
be achieved for any subsequent quarter or for a full fiscal year. These fluctuations could adversely affect the market
price of our common stock.

Our ability to grow through acquisitions will depend upon various factors, including the following:

¢ the availability of suitable acquisition candidates at attractive purchase prices,
o the ability to compete effectively for available acquisition opportunities, and

o the availability of funds or common stock with a sufficient market price to complete the acquisitions.

As a part of our acquisition strategy, we frequently engage in discussions with various companies regarding
their potential acquisition by us. In connection with these discussions, we and each potential acquisition candidate
exchange confidential operational and financial information, conduct due diligence inquiries, and consider the
structure, terms, and conditions of the potential acquisition. In certain cases, the prospective acquisition candidate
agrees not to discuss a potential acquisition with any other party for a specific period of time, grants us an option to
purchase the prospective business for a designated price during a specific time, and agrees to take other actions
designed to enhance the possibility of the acquisition, such as preparing audited financial information. Potential
acquisition discussions frequently take place over a long period of time and involve difficult business integration
and other issues, including in some cases, management succession and related matters. As a result of these and
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other factors, a number of potential acquisitions that from time to time appear likely to occur do not result in binding
legal agreements and are not consummated.

We cannot assure you that we would be successful in overcoming problems encountered in connection with
such acquisitions, and our inability to do so could adversely affect our business.

Potential strategic alliances may not achieve their objectives.

We have entered into various strategic alliances, such as our alliances with OSRAM Opto Semiconductors
for OLEDs, and we plan on entering into other similar types of alliances in the future. Among other matters, we will
explore strategic alliances designed to enhance or complement our technology or to work in conjunction with our
technology; to increase our manufacturing capacity; to provide necessary know-how, components, or supplies; and
to develop, introduce, and distribute products and services utilizing our technology and know-how. Any strategic
alliances may not achieve their strategic objectives, and parties to our strategic alliances may not perform as
contemplated.

The market price of our common stock may be volatile.

The market price of our common stock has been extremely volatile. Our stock price increased dramatically
during the three-year period ended December 31, 1994, but declined significantly during 1995 and 1996. Our stock
price increased again during 1997, but declined significantly in 1998. Our stock price again increased significantly
during 1999 and in early 2000, but suffered a major decline in the second half of 2000 and again in 2001 and 2002.
The trading price of our common stock in the future could continue to be subject to wide fluctuations in response to
various factors, including the following:

e variations in our quarterly operating results;

e announcements about the prospects or financial performance of the industries or customers we serve;
e changes in analysts' estimates of our financial performance;

o failure to meet performance estimates of securities analysts;

e general conditions in the electronics industry; and

¢ worldwide economic and financial conditions.

In addition, the stock market has experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that have particularly
affected the market prices for many technology-related companies and that often have been unrelated to the
operating performance of these companies. These broad market fluctuations and other factors may adversely affect
the market price of our common stock.

Adverse trends in the electronics industry may adversely affect our operating resuits.

Our business depends on the electronics industry, which is subject to rapid technological change, short
product life cycles, and margin pressures. In addition, the electronics industry historically has been cyclical and
subject to significant downturns characterized by diminished product demand, accelerated erosion of average selling
prices, and production over-capacity. We seek to reduce our exposure to industry downturns and cyclicality by
providing design and production services for leading companies in a variety of rapidly expanding segments of the
electronics industry. Despite these efforts, economic conditions affecting the electronics industry in general or our
major customers may adversely affect our operating results.

We could be requiired to expend substantive resources to comply with governmental regulations.

Our operations are subject to certain federal, state, and local regulatory requirements relating to
environmental, waste management, health, and safety matters. As a publicly traded company in the United States,
we are also subject to federal and state governance and internal control requirements as well as to the New York
Stock Exchange listing requirements. We believe we operate in substantial compliance with all applicable
requirements. There can be no assurance, however, that material costs and liabilities will not arise from complying
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with these or from new, modified, or more stringent requirements. In addition, our past, current, or future
operations, including any operation we have acquired, may give rise to claims of exposure by employees or the
public or to other claims or liabilities relating to environmental, waste management, or health and safety concerns.
The costs of complying with all regulatory requirements may be material when compared to our revenue.

Change in control provisions may adversely affect existing stockholders.

Our restated certificate of incorporation and the Delaware General Corporation Law contain provisions that
may have the effect of making more difficult or delaying attempts by others to obtain control of our company, even
when these attempts may be in the best interests of stockholders. Our restated certificate also authorizes the board
of directors, without stockholder approval, to issue one or more series of preferred stock, which could have voting
and conversion rights that adversely affect or dilute the voting power of the holders of common stock, Delaware
law also imposes conditions on certain business combination transactions with "interested stockholders."

We have also adopted a stockholders' rights plan intended to encourage anyone seeking to acquire our
company to negotiate with our board of directors prior to attempting a takeover. While the plan was designed to
guard against coercive or unfair tactics to gain control of our company, the plan may have the effect of making more
difficult or delaying any attempts by others to obtain control of our company.

We do not pay cash dividends.
We have never paid any cash dividends on our common stock and do not anticipate that we will pay cash

dividends in the foreseeable future. Instead, we intend to apply earnings to the expansion and development of our
business.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Location Type Leased or Owned Square Feet
Tempe, Arizona, USA Administrative; sales; design Owned’ 97,000°
Redmond, Washington, USA Manufacturing; sales (3 separate locations) Leased 95,600
Marlborough, Massachusetts, USA  Manufacturing; sales ’ Leased 20,000
Orlando, Florida, USA Sales ' ' Leased 26,800
Manila, Philippines Manufacturing Leased 71,000
Penang, Malaysia Manufacturing; design, sales Leased 120,000
Beijing, Republic of China Manufacturing; design sales Owned 54,900
Swindon, England Sales Leased 3,100
" Held for sale

* We lease approximately 42,500 square feet of space to Brillian Corporation.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There are no legal proceedings to which we are a party or to which any of our properties are subject, other
than routine litigation incident to our business that is covered by insurance or an indemnity or that we do not expect
to have a material adverse effect on our company. It is possible, however, that we could incur claims for whxch we
are not insured or that exceed the amount of our insurance coverage.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
Not applicable.
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PARTII

ITEM S. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

Our common stock has been listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "TFS" since
December 29, 1994, The following table sets forth the quarterly high and low sales prices of our common stock as
reported on the New York Stock Exchange for the periods indicated:

High Low

2002:
FASt QUATTET L..eiveeieeciieiee ettt te st cae e ee et st sbe s ane e ba st seseesae s $17.80 $12.19
SeCONd QUATTET .......eiiuiietieiieterte ettt e e e s vee et e e e aeeetesaesaneenrnees 15.85 9.05
THIFA QUATTET ...evvitcvveiee e strete s rae e e eeaesbtsneern e e sabesnetebeseeebessesbestesbesans 10.73 4.55
Fourth QUATTET .......eoiviiriicieerecre et et eereseresraesreesresssa s e rasssesanessnseas 7.45 3.62

2003:
First QUATtET ......cocveveeerereerereeneeeeee oo e ettt ettt renn b $ 6.34 § 3.67
SECONA QUAITET ...ttt et ees e ve e ereersesn e estaesane e erbensasnes 6.94 4.89
Third QUATLET ...c..ooeiiieiiieie ettt e 9.76 5.51
FOUrth QUATTET .......eooviieiiii et e s ee e besab e s e ae e eseessaesraesrassnesneeas 6.77 4.64

2004:
First Quarter (through March 8, 2004) ........cocviminnriiineieee e $ 6.26 $ 4.19

As of March 8, 2004, there were approximately 603 holders of record of our common stock. The closing
sale price of our common stock on the New York Stock Exchange on March 8, 2004 was $6.26 per share.

Our policy is to retain earnings to provide funds for the operation and expansion of our business. We have
never paid cash dividends on our common stock and do not anticipate that we will do so in the foreseeable future.
The payment of dividends in the future will depend on our growth, profitability, financial condition, covenants in
loan documents, if any, and other factors that our board of directors may deem relevant.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected historical financial data presented below are derived from our consolidated financial
statements. The balance sheet data as of December 31, 2002, and 2003 and statements of operations data for the
fiscal years ended December 31, 2001, 2002, and 2003 were derived from the consolidated financial statements and
notes included elsewhere in this report hereto that have been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent
auditors. The selected financial data should be read in conjunction with Item 7, "Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the Consolidated Financial Statements and the
Notes thereto included elsewhere in this report.

Years Ended December 31,
1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
(in thousands, except per share data)

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data:

Net sales ......coeerrvene. ettt et r et e aeene $ 147,210 $ 159329 $ 117.200 $_86.587 159.018
Costs and expenses:
COSt OF SAIES ..ecveererereerr e seercnaeees 117,536 124,284 115,820 78,718 155,125
Selling, general, and administrative ............ 10,544 8,460 8,828 10,382 17,524
Research, development, and engineering.... 5,400 7,053 8,623 4,913 4,742
Loss (gain) on sale of assets........c.ccceecerceen. - 63 1,371 4,545 (25)
Amortization of intangibles...........ccococeoveirnencenn. - - - 256 2,043
133,480 139.860 134,642 98814 179.409
Operating income (10S8) .....cooovivniniieiieininninennes 13,730 19,469 (17,442) (12,227) (20,391)
Other income (EXPENSE), NEL .......cvr.crrrccernrercrnrrnrirenns (18) 7,258 7,270 3,492 864
Minority interest in loss (income) of
consolidated subsidiary ..........cccvererecncscennens 167 84 (36)
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Income (loss) from continuing operations

before income taxes ......c.oocvevvvverrvnrenn 13,712 26,727 (10,005) (8,651) (19,563)
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes... . 4,619 7.968 (4172 (3.921) 14,338
Income (loss) from continuing operations.................... 9,093 18,759 (5,833) (4,730) (33,501)
Loss from discontinued operations................ ST (2.169) (3.925 (11.931) (12.241) {10,552)
Net Income (1088) ..cocvinenricnrierininicnnce e $ 6924 $ 14,834 $ (17,764) $ (16971 $ (44453
Earnings (loss) per common share:

Basic:
Net income (loss) from continuing operations..... § 0.58 $ 092 $_(027) $___(022) § (.59
Net INCOmME (1088) cvevevvrveerrcerirerenriencrnrcnvinreserenns 3 0.44 $ 0.73 (083 §___©079) S (209
Diluted:
Net income (loss) from continuing operations...... $ 0.57 $ 0.87 s (027 g (0.22) 5 (1.59)
Net income (J0S8) ..ccvvurerierrrieencerrceriaree e $ 043 $ 0.69 (083 b 0.79) -3 2.09)
Weighted average number of common shares:
BasiC.c.iiieueieinc ettt 15,563 20,457 21,401 21,465 21,301
21,636 21,401 21,465 21,301
December 31,
1999 2000 2001 2002 2003

(in thousands)
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:

Working capital ... e $ 60,853 $ 194,492 $ 169,123 $ 107,885 $ 59,640
Total assets ................ 126,930 267,843 245,888 222,694 167,237
Debt and capital leases .. - 2,706 2,706 2,734 11,851
Stockholders’ Uity ....coocovvrirerirs s 101,220 242,002 223,944 205,668 117,032

ITEM7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview

Current Operations

We are a global provider of electronics manufacturing services, or EMS. We design and/or manufacture
printed circuit board assemblies, radio frequency, or RF, modules, display modules and systems, and complete
systems for customers in the automotive, computing, consumer, industrial, medical, and telecommunications
industries. Our services include advanced engineering support, "designed for" services, automated printed circuit
board assembly, in-circuit and functional testing, systems level integration and box build, turnkey packaging,
fulfillment services, and turnkey supply chain management services, all of which enable our customers the ability to
outsource all stages of product engineering, design, development, materials procurement and management,
manufacturing, and testing. Unlike most EMS companies, our design and manufacturing services include a
distinctive competence in display modules and systems and the integration of display modules and systems into
other products. These display module and systems include monochrome and color liquid crystal display, or LCD,
components, organic light emitting diodes, or OLEDs, and flat panel monitors.

The products we manufacture for customers are of varying sizes and have varying levels of integration.
The typical design program life cycle of a custom-designed product is three to 15 months and includes technical
design, prototyping, pilot manufacturing, and high-volume manufacturing. The cycle is shorter in products where no
display is involved and/or where the customer has already completed the design.

Several factors impact our gross margins, including manufacturing efficiencies, product mix, product
differentiation, product uniqueness, inventory management, and volume pricing. We have factories in Washington
and Massachusetts in the United States and in the Philippines, Malaysia, and China. In Washington and in
Malaysia, we provide engineering support, automated printed circuit board assembly, in-circuit and functional
testing, systems integration and box build, complete supply chain management, and turnkey packaging and
fulfillment services. In Massachusetts, we provide aftermarket customization of flat panel displays. In the
Philippines and China, we assemble displays into modules and are adding some of the manufacturing services
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offered in Washington and Malaysia. We also assemble RF modules in the Philippines. In the first quarter of 2004,
we announced that we are consolidating our overseas LCD module operations in China. We estimated the cost of
that reorganization at $1.2 million, most of which will occur in the first quarter of 2004. Once that consolidation has
occurred, the Philippines facility will focus only on RF modules.

Selling, general, and administrative expense consists principally of administrative and selling costs;
salaries, commissions, and benefits to personnel; and related facility costs. In general, these costs have risen as a
result of the acquisitions we have completed in the last fifteen months. We make substantially all of our sales
directly to OEMs through a sales force that consists mainly of direct technical sales persons but also includes a small
representative network. As a result, there is no material cost of distribution in our selling, general, and
administrative expense.

Research, development, and engineering expense consists principally of salaries and benefits to design
engineers and other technical personnel, related facility costs, process development costs, and various expenses for
projects, including new product development. In general, these costs have declined in the last few years because we
no longer do any pure research work. Thus, most of our expense relates to the development engineering costs
associated with preproduction design and prototyping of custom products and the conceptual formulation and design
of potential standard display products.

We also have expenses relating to the amortization of intangibles. Those expenses relate to amortizable
intangibles acquired in acquisitions as described below.

Future Operations

Our long-term model is to have gross margins of 12 percent to 15 percent and operating costs of between 6
percent and 8 percent of revenue. Qur goal is to achieve an interim model within 18 months of 10 percent to 12
percent gross margins with operating costs of between 8 percent and 11 percent of revenue. The drivers to achieving
our long-term and interim models are improving the utilization of our off-shore factories through increased revenue
and improving our gross margins by focusing on markets, like gaming and medical, which value our unique
combination of global EMS capabilities and display expertise.

Historic Operations

Prior to 2002, our business strategy was to seek large-volume display programs from major original
equipment manufacturers, or OEMs, typically 100,000 units per year or higher, with selling prices of approximately
$7 per unit. From 1998 to 2002, substantially all of our large volume business was in providing display modules for
Motorola handsets. In 2001, new monochrome design wins in that business became unprofitable; thus, we began to
refocus our strategy to expand our customer base and our product and service offering. As a result of our change in
strategy, none of our design wins in the last several years have been with the handset group at Motorola.
Consequently, Motorola business declined sharply, accounting for 78% of our revenue in 2002 and less than 10% of
our revenue in 2003. We further modified our strategy in late 2002 to also begin focusing on providing
manufacturing services for products that do not need displays.

The substantial shift in our business strategy has resulted in increased selling and administrative costs. By
previously focusing on one market and one customer, we were able to be very efficient in the utilization of our
selling and administrative groups. By contrast, we now have many more customers requiring more sales interface. In
addition, administrative costs have increased as we have increased the number of satellite operations in the United
States and around the world. In addition, the shift in sales strategy from a high-volume focus to a more value-add
focus has resulted in reduced volumes at higher selling prices. The reduced volumes have resulted in some excess
capacity at our factories overseas.

Prior to 2001, we used our own front-end LCD production line in the Phoenix area for the manufacture of
more technologically complex and custom high-volume LCDs. We also purchased LCDs from third parties to
provide us an alternate source and to ensure available capacity. In order to take advantage of lower labor costs, we
traditionally shipped LCDs to our facilities in the Philippines and China for assembly into modules. During 2001,
we decided to move our front-end LCD manufacturing line to Asia. During 2002, we signed a Cooperative
Agreement with a Chinese company under which we agreed to sell the equipment used in our front-end LCD line
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and establish a supply agreement. Under the terms of the Cooperative Agreement, in exchange for our front-end
LCD equipment, we received a total of $3.0 million in cash. In the second quarter of 2002, as a result of signing the
Cooperative Agreement, we realized a charge of $4.5 million for the write-down on the LCD equipment sold to the
Chinese company. This charge was reported as a separate line item in operating expense. In connection with the
Cooperative Agreement, we received $2.1 million in 2002, all of which was applied against the $3.0 million sales
price and recorded as a reduction in the carrying value of the LCD equipment held for sale. The sale of the
equipment is now complete, and we received the remaining $900,000 payment in 2003.

As a result of the foregoing, we have substantially changed our business since late in 2002, We have
reduced our concentration in Motorola revenue. The selling price of the products we manufacture and sell now range
up to $4,000 per unit. We have numerous customers in six principal markets. We have expanded our business both
through organic growth and through the acquisitions of AVT, ETMA, Unico, and Integrex. We have also expanded
through the license arrangement with Data International and through our manufacturing agreement with Microtune.

Acquisitions and Strategic Transactions

In September 2002, we purchased the assets and ongoing business of AVT, located in Mariborough,
Massachusetts, a privately held company that specializes in the design and integration of complex, high-resolution
display systems. As a result, we now design and provide customized and ruggedized flat panel, touchscreen, and
rackmount systems for OEMs in the industrial and medical markets. We outsource display components from a
variety of companies, including Sony, Sharp, NEC, LG, and Samsung. The purchase price of the acquisition was
$12.0 million, which we paid entirely in cash.

In December 2002, we purchased the stock of ETMA Corporation, located in Redmond, Washington, a
privately held electronic manufacturer for OEM customers in the computer peripheral, medical monitoring, and
Internet security industries. As a result, we now offer the manufacturing capabilities of five surface mount
manufacturing lines, including one dedicated to new product introduction and prototyping activity. We also
provide engineering support, automated printed circuit board assembly, in-circuit and functional testing, systems
integration and box build, complete supply chain management, and turnkey packaging and fulfillment services. The
purchase price of the ETMA acquisition was $38.1 million, which we paid entirely in cash.

In January 2003, we signed licensing and manufacturing agreements with Data International Co., Ltd. of
Taiwan. Under those agreements, we became the exclusive channel in the Americas for standard and custom LCD
products manufactured by Data International. We also have the right to sell those products through our worldwide
channels. The agreements provide us with access to a full suite of standard display products that round out our
existing standard product portfolio. In conjunction with the agreement, we established a sales office in Orlando,
Florida, and hired sales and applications engineering personnel from a distributor that had previously supported Data
International’s products. The cost of the license was $3.9 million, of which $1.0 million was paid upon signing and
approximately $1.4 million was paid in the first quarter of 2004. The remaining $1.5 million is due in January 2005.
The remaining balance due is subject to reduction if certain margin targets are not met.

In March 2003, we signed an agreement with Microtune, Inc. in which we agreed to manufacture,
assemble, and test Microtune’s radio frequency, or RF, tuner modules and wireless module products in our
manufacturing facility in Manila, the Philippines. As part of the agreement, Microtune sold to us certain of its own
equipment and inventory for $8.2 million, of which $2.7 million was a note payable due in September 2003, and
contracted with us to provide 100% of Microtune’s current demand for fully assembled RF subsystems. We also
hired approximately 500 Microtune employees in Manila. In October 2003, we paid off approximately $300,000 of
the $2.7 million note payable to Microtune and entered into an agreement to cancel the remaining $2.4 million
balance on that note in exchange for the return of certain excess inventory to Microtune. As a result of this
transaction, we now provide 100% of the manufacturing outsourcing for Microtune’s RF module products.

In April 2003, we acquired the business and certain assets of Unico Technology Bhd., a privately held
Malaysian company located in Penang. Unico was an electronic manufacturer for OEM customers in the computer,
computer peripheral, and communications industries. The Unico business was acquired by TFS Electronics
Manufacturing Services Sdn. Bhd., or TFS-Malaysia, a joint venture owned 60% by an overseas TFS subsidiary and
40% by Unico Holdings Bhd., the former parent of Unico. Unico Holdings is the investment arm of the Chinese
Chamber of Commerce of Malaysia. OQur share of the initial cost of capitalizing TFS-Malaysia was $3.8 million and
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Unico Holdings’ share was $2.5 million, most of which will be used for working capital. TFS-Malaysia purchased
$4.1 million in inventory from Unico, of which $2.7 million was paid at the time of the purchase and $1.4 million
was subsequently paid. No advance payment was required for the acquisition of the property, plant, and equipment
of Unico, all of which is leased from the seller. The equipment lease is accounted for as a capital lease payable by
TFS-Malaysia. The principal balance on that lease was $8.1 million as of December 31, 2003.

In February 2004, we entered into a transaction with Integrex, a Seattle-based electronics manufacturing
services company [liquidating its business. Under that transaction, we bought the raw materials inventory of Integrex
and hired certain of its employees. We also obtained the rights to most of its customers and agreed with those
customers that wei would manufacture those customers’ products in our Redmond manufacturing facility. In
exchange for those customer rights, we agreed to pay a license fee for between 15 and 24 months based on revenue
actually received by us from the sale of products to the former Integrex customers. A portion of that license fee was
paid in advance at closing.

Discontinued Operations

On September 1, 2003, we transferred all of the net assets of our microdisplay division, plus approximately
$20.9 million in cash, into a newly created Delaware corporation called Brillian Corporation. On September 15,
2003, we spun off Brillian by distributing all of the outstanding common stock of Brillian to our stockholiders on a
pro rata basis, with each of our stockholder receiving one share of Brillian common stock for each four shares of
our common stock held. Brillian is now traded on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “BRLC.” Brillian
had $44.1 million of net assets on the spin-off date. For more information on the reason for the spin-off, as well as
the description of business and risks associated with the spin-off, please refer to the Form 10 and other filings by
Brillian with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The microdisplay business that we transferred to Brillian is
now reported in our consolidated financial statements as Discontinued Operations.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our
financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
{(GAAP) in the United States. During preparation of these financial statements, we are required to make estimates
and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, and expenses, and related disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities. On an on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates and judgments, including those
related to sales returns, bad debts, inventories, fixed assets, intangible assets, income taxes, and contingencies. We
base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe are reasonable under
the circumstances. The results form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different
assumptions or conditions.

We believe the following critical accounting policies affect our more significant judgments and estimates
used in the preparation of our financial statements.

We recognize revenue from product sales when persuasive evidence of a sale exists; that is, a product is
shipped under an agreement with a customer; risk of loss and title has passed to the customer; the fee is fixed or
determinable; and collection of the resulting receivable is reasonably assured. This means that when a product is
shipped from one of our factories under the terms “FOB Factory” then the risk of loss passes to the customer when
the product leaves our factory and we recognize revenue at that time. On the other hand, when a product is shipped
“FOB Destination” then the risk of loss during transit is maintained by us. Thus, we recognize revenue when the
product is accepted by the customer. Shipping terms with one of our major customers is FOB Destination, and many
of those products are shipped by water taking four to six weeks to reach their destination. As a result, we had $3.6
million of product in transit at the end of the year and in our finished goods inventory.

Sales allowances are estimated based upon historical experience of sales returns. To establish our
allowance for doubtful accounts, we perform credit evaluations of our customers’ financial condition, along with
analyzing past experience, and make provisions for doubtful accounts based on the outcome of our credit valuations
and analysis. We evaluate the collectability of our accounts receivable based on specific customer circumstances,
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current economic trends, historical experience with collections and the age of past due receivables. We believe the
allowances that we have established are adequate under the circumstances; however, a change in the economic
environment or a customer’s financial condition could cause our estimates of allowances, and consequently the
provision for doubtful accounts to change.

We recognize revenue related to engineering and tooling services after service has been rendered, which is
determined based upon completion of agreed-upon milestones or deliverables.

We write down our inventory for estimated obsolescence or unmarketable inventory. We write down our
inventory to estimated market value based upon assumptions and estimates about future demand and market
conditions. If actual market conditions are less favorable than those projected by us, additional inventory write-
downs may be required. We made two significant estimates regarding inventory at the end of 2003. First, we are
holding approximately $778,000 of inventory relating to a program cancelled by a customer. Approximately 47% of
that inventory related to material that we had purchased to fulfill purchase orders issued to us by that customer and
53% of that inventory related to material that we purchased in connection with a general business agreement entered
into with respect to that customer regarding long-lead time parts. As a result of initial discussions with the
customer, we have not established a reserve for any of this inventory. Second, we learned from another customer
prior to the end of the year that a product shipped by us to them contained potentially defective parts. Those
potentially defective parts came from a component supplied to us by a vendor specified by our customer. We are
investigating whether those parts can be repaired or whether they are unrepairable. If they are unrepairable, then
approximately $1.2 million of inventory that we are holding would be worthless. It is our belief that such parts can
be repaired. It is also our belief that if such parts cannot be repaired, then the liability for such worthless inventory
would lie with the vendor of the defective component. As a result, we did not record a reserve for any potentially
bad inventory relating to this second issue.

Pursuant to Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS™) No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”, income taxes ate recorded based on current year amounts
payable or refundable, as well as the consequences of events that give rise to deferred tax assets and liabilities. We
base our estimate of current and deferred taxes on the tax laws and rates that are currently in effect in the appropriate
jurisdiction. Changes in tax laws or rates may affect the current amounts payable or refundable as well as the
amount of deferred tax assets or liabilities.

At the end of the second quarter of 2003, we had $19.8 million of net deferred tax assets, resulting
primarily from net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. SFAS No. 109 requires that a valuation allowance be
established when it is more likely than not that all or a portion of a deferred tax asset will not be realized. In
determining whether a valuation allowance is required, we are required to take into account all positive and negative
evidence with regard to the utilization of a deferred tax asset, including our past earnings history, market conditions,
management forecasts of future profitability, the character and jurisdiction of such eamings, unsettled circumstances
that, if unfavorably resotved, would adversely affect utilization of a deferred tax asset, carryback and carryforward
periods, and tax strategies that could potentially enhance the likelihood of realization of a deferred tax asset. SFAS
No. 109 further states that it is difficult to conclude that a valuation allowance is not needed when there is negative
evidence such as cumulative losses in recent years. Therefore, despite the fact that a major portion of the losses
came from our spun-off microdisplay division, the expectation in the third quarter of 2003 was that we would have
three years of cumulative losses. Those cumulative losses weighed heavily in the overall required assessment and
outweighed our forecasted future profitability and expectation that we will be able to utilize all of our net operating
loss carryforwards. As a result, in the third quarter of 2003, we recorded a charge to establish a full valuation
allowance against our deferred tax asset. We expect to continue to record a full valuation allowance on future tax
benefits until we return to sustained profitability. During 2003, our income tax expense was $14.3 million as a
result of our full valuation allowance.

Long-term assets, such as property, plant, and equipment, intangibles, goodwill, and other investments, are
originally recorded at cost. On an on-going basis, we assess these assets to determine if their current recorded value
is impaired. When assessing these assets, we consider projected future cash flows to determine if impairment is
applicable. These cash flows are evaluated for objectivity by using weighted probability techniques and also
comparisons of past performance against projections. Assets may also be evaluated by identifying independent
market values of assets that we believe to be comparable. If we believe that an asset's value was impaired, we would
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write down the carrying value of the identified asset and charge the impairment as an expense in the period in which
the determination was made.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the percentage of net sales of certain items in our
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Years Ended December 31,

2001 2002 2003

INEL SAIES 1.vivieviieree vt 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Costs and expenses:

CoSt Of SAIES .ovvevrveiriiiiecii e 98.8 90.9 97.6

Selling, general, and administrative ..............cceeen.. 7.5 12.0 11.0

Research, development and engineering................ 7.4 5.7 3.0

Loss {gain) on:sale 0f @ssets.......c.cccmeciircncennrcnnnnn 1.2 52 -

Amortization of customer lists ......c.ccevevrvreereeenen. - 0.3 1.3

1149 114.1 112.9

Operating 0SS ..0...ocoeeroriircee e (14.9) (14.1) (12.9)
Other iNCOME, NEt...ccicviieiiiiiiecci e e 6.2 4.0 0.6
Minority interest in loss of consolidated subsidiary .. 0.1 0.1 -
Loss from continuing operations

before INCOME tAXES.....ecveevieiercerierreenriee e (8.6) (10.0) (12.3)
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes................. (3.6) (4.5) 9.0
Loss from continuing operations ........c.c.coccecereevennen, (5.0) : (5.5) (21.3)
Loss from discontinued operations..........c.c.co.evveenenn. (10.2) 14.1) (6.7)
INEELOSS -eoveriirirererete et r e e (15.2Y% (19.6\% (28.0Y%

Year ended December 31, 2003 compared to vear ended December 31, 2002

Overview of 2003. This was a year of transition for us. Prior to late 2002, we were a monochrome custom
LCD module supplier servicing primarily Motorola in the handset market. Beginning in the second half of 2002, we
expanded our capabilities to include standard, color and large-format display products. More importantly, as a result
of several acquisitions, we became a broad-based electronics manufacturing services company offering services
such as advanced printed circuit board assembly, RF module assembly, and box build. In addition, we made the
decision in 2003 to spin-off our research-intensive microdisplay business to Brillian. Finally, we ceased
manufacturing display modules for Motorola’s handset business in the second half of 2003. This rapid change
resulted in several issues during the year, including integration issues with the RF module business, excess capacity
at the display module factories, and negative margins on new color display products. In the fourth quarter of 2003,
we remedied the initial negative margin issues on the color display products. We also made improvements in the
manufacturing issues we had with the RF modules. In addition, in the first quarter of 2004, we announced that we
are consolidating our display module operations in China by closing the display module operations in the
Philippines. It is.anticipated that the consolidation will help, but not completely remedy, our excess capacity issue in
display modules; Among our principal focuses in 2004 is successfully transitioning the LCD display operations to
China, increasing the utilization of our Asian factories, and increasing our gross margins.

Net Sales. Net sales increased 83.6% to $159.0 million in 2003 from $86.6 million in 2002. The increase
in revenue was primarily as a result of additional manufacturing business in Redmond and Malaysia of $66.4
million, growth of our RF module business of $10.3 million, the addition of our standard product displays from Data
International of $15.9 million, and sales of color display modules of $24.7 million. Conversely, our sales to
Motorola declined, both in dollars and as a percentage of our net sales. Motorola accounted for less than 10% of our
net sales in 2003 compared to 78% in 2002. We had two customers that each exceeded more than 10% of our net
sales in 2003. Avocent, which is in the computer peripherals business, accounted for 23% of our net sales, and
Vitelcom, a European telecom company, accounted for 13% of our net sales.
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In 2003, our sales were distributed over six major markets: automotive, computing, consumer, industrial,
medical/instrumentation, and telecommunications. By contrast, in 2002, we were highly concentrated with 82.0%
of our sales coming from a single market, telecommunications. Our net sales distributed by industry were as
follows:

Industry 2002 2003

Computing 7% 38%
Telecom 82% 28%
Medical 4% 13%
Industrial 5% 10%
Consumer 1% 6%
Automotive 1% 5%

Geographically, in 2003, 54.0% of our sales were in the United States; 20.5% of our sales were in Asia; and
25.5% of our sales were in Europe. Our recent trend has shown increased sales in the United States and Europe. Our
increased sales in the United States were primarily a result of several recently acquired businesses and because of
increased display-oriented manufacturing business. Our increased sales in Europe were primarily as a result of the
increased sales of color LCD modules to a European handset manufacturing company. Asia sales have declined
because of the reduced sales to Motorola, most of which were in China. Not including Motorola, however, the trend
has been that our sales in Asia are increasing. Most of our Asian sales are to U.S.-based, multinational companies
with factories located in Asia.

Cost of Sales. Cost of sales increased to 97.6% of net sales in 2003 from 90.9% in 2002. Our gross margin
is equal to the difference between our revenue and our cost of sales. Consequently, our company-wide gross margin
in 2003 was $3.9 million, or 2.4% of net sales. For products manufactured in Redmond, Marlborough, and Penang,
our gross margin was higher than this aggregate gross margin. For products manufactured in Beijing and Manila, the
gross margins were lower than the aggregate gross margin for three reasons. First, the unit volume of our sales in
Beijing and Manila was lower because of the reduced sales to Motorola and because the replacement sales to other
customers have lower volumes but higher selling prices. These reduced manufacturing volumes resulted in under-
absorption of our fixed manufacturing costs. Second, in Manila the gross margins on our color display products
were negative because of introductory pricing on new products and because we had not obtained expected pricing
reductions from vendors of color panels. Third, we were still in the process of ramping up our RF module
manufacturing in Manila and moving those processes from Microtune’s factory to ours. As a result, those products
sold at below breakeven during the ramp-up phase. We expect over capacity to continue in the next year at some of
our Asian factories. We are partially addressing this under utilization by consolidating our display module assembly
operations in Beijing, which will result in reorganization costs in Manila as we right-size that organization to focus
on RF.

Selling, General, and Administrative Expense. Selling, general, and administrative expense increased
68.3% to $17.5 million in 2003 from $10.4 million in 2002, As a percentage of net sales, however, SG&A expense
decreased from 12.0% of net sales in 2002 to 11.0% of net sales in 2003. This change in SG&A expense occurred
primarily because of four factors: (1) the additional SG&A costs associated with the acquired EMS business in
Redmond of $2.9 million, (2) the additional SG&A costs associated with the acquired EMS business in Penang of
$1.5 million, (3) increased sales expenses as a result of increased display sales of $1.2 million, and (4) the recording
of expenses of approximately $1.2 million associated with an arbitration claim we pursued against J.D. Edwards,
which has been settled.

Research, Development, and Engineering Expense. Research, development, and engineering expense
decreased slightly to $4.7 million in 2003 from $4.9 million in 2002, Research, development, and engineering
expense decreased as a percentage of net sales, declining to 3.0% of net sales in 2003 from 5.7% of net sales in
2002.-

Loss (Gain) on Sale of Assets. In 2003, we realized a gain of $25,000 for the sale of certain assets

compared to a loss of $4.5 million in 2002. The loss in 2002 related to the sale of our front-end manufacturing LCD
equipment, described above in “Overview.”
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Amortization of Intangibles. During 2003, we had $2.0 million of amortization relating to customer lists
and distribution rights compared to $256,000 amortization expense during 2002. The amortization in 2003 relates to
the acquisitions of AVT and ETMA and to the license agreement with Data International, all described above in
“Qverview.” Theiamortizable asset associated with AVT is $3.0 million and is being amortized over five years. The
amortizable asset associated with ETMA is $2.0 million and is being amortized over three years. The amortizable
asset associated with Data International is $3.9 million and is being amortized over five years.

Other Income (Expense), Net. Other income in 2003 was $864,000 compared to $3.5 million in 2002.
The primary difference was that interest income decreased $2.6 million because of decreased cash and investments
balances and because the interest rate earned on investments was lower in 2003 than 2002. The interest expense
increased $886,000 and was primarily associated with the capital leases for our equipment acquired in Malaysia and
Redmond in the Unico and ETMA acquisitions described above in “Overview”. In 2003, we reached a settlement of
our legal claim against J.D. Edwards and recorded the settlement as other income of approximately $700,000.

Minori(f Interest. We control and own 60% of the business in Malaysia. Since that business had losses in
2003, we recorded a benefit of $36,000 to account for the losses allocated to the minority interest holder compared
to a charge of $84,000 in 2002 relating to the winding-up of another investment with a different minority partner.

Provision for (Benefit from) Income Taxes. We recorded a provision for income taxes of $14.3 million in
2003 compared to a benefit for income taxes of $3.9 million for 2002. We recorded a charge in 2003 to establish a
valuation allowance against our deferred tax asset, which consists primarily of net operating loss carryforwards, or
NOLs. A further description of that allowance in described above in “Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates.”
The loss from discontinued operation was net of a tax benefit of $6.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2002.
There was no tax benefit in 2003 for discontinued operations.

Net Loss. We had a net loss of $44.5 million, or $2.09 per diluted share, in 2003 compared to a net loss of
$17.0 million, or'$0.79 per diluted share, in 2002. The net loss in 2003 included $10.6 million, or $0.50 per share,
from discontinued operations relating to our former microdisplay business. As described above in “Discontinued
Operations,” our microdisplay division was spun off as a separate public company as of September 15, 2003, as
Brillian Corporation. The net loss for the Brillian discontinued operations in 2002 was $12.3 million, or $0.57 per
share. Although we are forecasting a per share loss of between $0.55 and $0.59 in 2004, we do expect a return to
profitability in the fourth quarter of 2004 as we increase our production volume and mitigate our excess capacity.
We anticipate we will realize the benefit of consolidating our display module assembly operations from Manila to
Beijing in the third quarter of 2004,

Year ended December 31, 2002 compared to year ended December 31, 2001

Net Sales. Net sales decreased 26.1% to $86.6 million in 2002 from $117.2 million in 2001. The reduction
was primarily because of our reduced volume of business with our major customer, Motorola. We shipped 9.5
million units to Motorola in 2002 compared to 11.7 million units in 2001. In addition, the average selling price of
those Motorola units shipped in 2002 was substantially lower than in 2001 because of pricing pressures in the high-
volume, monochrome LCD market. Shipments were lower to Motorola because of our strategic decision not to seek
business from customers that would produce very low or negative gross margins.

Cost of Sales. Cost of sales decreased to 90.9% of net sales in 2002 from 98.8% in 2001. This percentage
decrease resulted primarily from cost-reduction efforts undertaken throughout 2002. The cost of sales continued to
be higher than our long-range expectations because our fixed costs were under absorbed at our overseas factories as
a result of excess capacity.

Selling, General, and Administrative Expense. Selling, general, and administrative expense increased
18.1% to $10.4 million in 2002 from $8.8 million in 2001. In 2002, SG&A consisted primarily of fixed costs
because we had no distribution costs and a small sales force that focused on custom products. Thus, SG&A
increased in 2002, primarily as a result of our acquisitions of AVT and ETMA.

Research, Development, and Engineering Expense. Research, development, and engineering expense
decreased to $4.9 million in 2002 from $8.6 million in 2001 as we shifted resources into our microdisplay division,
which is now reported as discontinued operations.
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Loss (Gain) on sale of Assets. During the second quarter of 2002, we signed a Cooperative Agreement
with a Chinese company under which we agreed to sell the equipment of our front-end manufacturing LCD line and
establish a supply agreement. We realized a charge of $4.5 million for the write-down on the LCD equipment. This
charge was reported as a separate line item in operating expense. During 2001, we wrote off $1.4 million of costs
relating to the cancellation of our J.D. Edwards Enterprise Resource Planning System implementation.

Amortization of Intangibles. As a result of the acquisitions of AVT and ETMA, we added a new line item
in 2002 for operating costs related to the amortization of intangible assets of customer lists that have definable lives.
We had no such expense in 2001 and $256,000 for 2002. Most of that expense related to the acquisition of AVT.
The initial total amount of amortizable assets associated with AVT was $3.0 million. We also acquired ETMA
Corporation in the fourth quarter of 2002, and the initial total amount of amortizable assets associated with ETMA
was $2.0 million. The AVT-related assets will be amortized over five years while the ETMA assets will be
amortized over three years.

Other Income (Expense), Net. Other income in 2002 was $164,000, slightly higher than other income of
$4,000 in 2001. Net interest income in 2002 was $3.3 million compared to $7.3 million in 2001.

Benefit from Income Taxes. We recorded a benefit from income taxes of $3.9 million in 2002 compared
to a benefit for income taxes of $4.2 million in 2001. The Company had an effective tax rate of 45.3% in 2002
compared to an effective tax rate of 41.7% in 2001. The difference was primarily a change in relative operational
results between U.S. and foreign jurisdictions and the impact of recording a valuation allowance on foreign tax
credits carry forwards in 2002. In other words, a greater portion of our net loss in 2002 related to higher tax rate
jurisdictions, thereby causing the accrued tax benefit to be a greater percentage of our net loss.

Net Loss. In 2002, we recorded a net loss of $17.0 million, or $0.79 per diluted share, compared to a net
loss of $17.8 million, or $0.83 per diluted share, in 2001. Continuing operations recorded a loss of $4.7 million, or
$0.22 per share, in 2002 compared to a loss of $5.8 million, or $0.27 per share, in 2001. Discontinued operations
recorded a net loss of $12.2 million, or $0.57 per diluted share, in 2002 compared to a net loss of $12.3 million, or
$0.56 per diluted share, in 2001.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
At December 31, 2003, we had cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments of $33.1 million

compared to $80.6 million at December 31, 2002. The primary components of reduced cash, cash equivalents, and
short-term investments balances can be summarized for 2003 as follows:

Operating Cash FIow ......coocovnmiriiininirncc e $ (1,994
Capital Expenditures and Acquisitions (a) .......coeveveecrcnrnnnne $ (13,499
Debt and Capital Lease Repayments........ccoooevevevnrevnieennnens . (4,456)

Cash Used In and Contributed To Discontinued Operations .. $ (30,092)

(a) Includes the following lines from the cash flows: purchases of property, plant, and equipment, proceeds from sale of
assets, purchase of intangibles, and acquisitions

In 2003, we had $2.0 million in net cash outflow from operations compared to $5.6 million in net cash
inflow from operations in 2002. Our inventory turns were 7.2 and day sales outstanding, or DSOs, were 51 days in
2003 compared with 5.5 inventory turns and 73 DSOs in 2002. Our depreciation and amortization expense was $7.6
million in 2003 and $4.0 million in 2002.

Our working capital was $59.6 million at December 31, 2003, down from $107.9 million at December 31,
2002. Our current ratio at December 31, 2003 was 2.5-to-1 compared to 7.3-to-1 at December 31, 2002. The
decrease in working capital was primarily because of reduced cash balances.

While we transact business predominantly in U.S. dollars and bill and collect most of our sales in U.S.

dollars, we collect a portion of our revenue in non-U.S. currencies, such as the Chinese Renminbi. In the future,
customers increasingly may make payments in non-U.S. currencies, such as the Euro. In addition, we account for a
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portion of our costs, such as payroll, rent, and indirect operating costs, in non-U.S. currencies, including Philippine
Pesos, British Pounds Sterling, Malaysian Ringgit, and Chinese Renminbi. Thus, fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates could affect our cost of goods and operating margins and could result in exchange losses. In
addition, currency ‘devaluation can result in a loss to us if we hold deposits of that currency. Hedging foreign
currencies can be difficult, especially if the currency is not freely traded. We cannot predict the impact of future
exchange rate fluctuations on our operating results. These currency risks are particularly important since sales
outside North America represented 46% of our net sales in 2003 and 86% of our net sales in 2002, Sales in foreign
markets, primarily Europe and Asia, to OEMs based in the United States accounted for almost all of our
international salesiin both of these periods.

We currently have no credit facility outstanding in the United States. We expect to negotiate one or more
credit facilities in 2004, although we do not expect to need any such facility in the near future. Any such facility
would likely be secured by our working capital assets, our unencumbered building in Tempe, Arizona, or both. In
September 2003, we paid off our unsecured $2.7 million term loan to the Bank of China, but we have initiated
discussions to re-open that credit facility. The following tables list our contractual obligations and commercial
commitments: :

Payments due by Period
Contractual Obligations Total Less 6 Years
(in thousands) QObligations than 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years and OQver
Notes Payable ............................................ 2,956 1,515 1,441 - -
Operating Leases.......ccoovveercerrvreecorveecncns 20,805 3,778 6,888 2,493 7,646
Capital Leases.......cccoovevinniiinennn, 8,895 2,352 6,543

53265 5 7645 § 14872 5 2493 5 7646

Total Contractual Cash Obligations

Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Period

Other Commercial Commitments Total Less 6 Years
(in thousands) Commitments than 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years and Over
Guarantee: $ 425 $ - $ - b 425 -

The operating leases include leases for our factories in Manila, Penang, Washington, Massachusetts, our
ground lease in Arizona, and our sales office in Florida. These leases are described in detail in item 2 of this report.
The capital leases are for our equipment in Malaysia and Washington. The guarantee relates to our guarantee in
connection with a Small Business Administration loan to VoiceViewer Technology, Inc., a privately held company
developing microdisplay products. Brillian assumed this guarantee on the $pin-off. If the lending institution were to
declare VoiceViewer to be in default under the loan, however, and if Brillian Corporation were unable to satisfy its
obligation as primary guarantor, then we would be required to pay the guaranteed amount.

As previously noted, the microdisplay division of our company, now reported as discontinued operations,
was spun off as a separate public company, Brillian Corporation, as of September 15, 2003. We distributed
approximately $20.9 million in cash in connection with the spin off of Brillian Corporation.

We haveino other long-term debt, capital lease obligations, unconditional purchase obligations, or other
long-term obligations, and we do not have any other commercial commitments or other off-balance sheet
arrangements,

We believe that our existing balances of cash, cash equivalents, and investments will provide adequate
sources to fund our operations and planned expenditures through 2004, as well as to meet our contractual
obligations. Specifically, we have over $33.1 million in cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments. Our
currently planned cash outflows for 2004 include capital expenditures of less than $3.0 million, the potential
purchase of our Manila facility for $4.4 million, and an estimated $2.5 million for inventory and prepaid amounts in
the Integrex transaction. We expect operating cash outflow to consume only a small portion of our cash reserves, but
based on our revenue forecast, we will need substantial working capital in the second half of 2004. We expect to
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close on one or more credit facilities in 2004 to fund those working capital needs, although we expect that such a
facility will not be required because the expected total cash outflows for 2004 are substantially less than our existing
cash balances. We expect to continue our acquisition strategy. New acquisitions or alliances may result in our
needing to expand our loan commitments or pursue alternate methods of financing or raise capital. We cannot
provide assurance that adequate additional loan commitments or alternative methods of financing will be available
or, if available, that they will be on terms acceptable to us.

Impact of Recently Issued Standards.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 45 (“FIN 45”), “Guarantor’s Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.” This
Interpretation addresses the disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its financial statements and its obligations
under guarantees. The Interpretation also clarifies the requirements related to the recognition of a liability by the
guarantor at the inception of a guarantee. Per the Interpretation, initial recognition of a liability shall be applied only
on a prospective basis to guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. We adopted the requirements of
FIN 45 as of January 1, 2003, and there was no impact on our financial position or results of operations.

In January 2003, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) issued EITF 00-21, “Accounting for Revenue
Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables.” EITF 00-21 addresses the issues of how to determine whether an
arrangement involving multiple deliverables contains more than one unit of accounting and how arrangement
consideration should be measured and allocated to the separate units of accounting in the arrangement. EITF 00-21
does not change otherwise applicable revenue recognition criteria. EITF 00-21 is effective for revenue
arrangements entered into in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2003. The application of EITF 00-21 did not
have a material effect on our financial statements.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 46 (“FIN 46™), “Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities,” which clarifies the application of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, “Consolidated Financial
Statements,” relating to consolidation of certain entities. This interpretation was subsequently revised by FIN 46
{Revised 2003) in December 2003. This interpretation states that consolidation of variable interest entities will be
required by the primary beneficiary if the entities do not effectively disperse risk among the parties involved. The
requirements are effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2003. We have no variable interest entities
and do not believe that FIN No. 46(R) will pact our future financial results.

~ In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with
Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity” (“SFAS No. 150”), SFAS No. 150 requires the classification of
certain financial instruments, previously classified within the equity section of the balance sheet, to be included in
liabilities. SFAS No. 150 is effective for financial instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003 and June
15,2003 for all other instruments. The adoption of SFAS No. 150 did not have an impact on our financial
statements.

Rule 10b5-1 Trading Plans

Our Insider Trading Policy permits our directors, officers, and other key personnel to establish purchase
and sale programs in accordance with Rule 10b5-1 adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission. The rule.
permits employees to adopt written plans at a time before becoming aware of material nonpublic information and to
sell shares according to a plan on a regular basis (for example, weekly or monthly), regardless of any subsequent
nonpublic information they receive. In our view, Rule 10b5-1 plans are beneficial because systematic, pre-planned
sales that take place over an extended period should have a less disruptive influence on the price of our stock. We
also believe plans of this type are beneficial because they inform the marketplace about the nature of the trading
activities of our directors and officers. In the absence of such information, the market could mistakenly attribute
transactions as reflecting a lack of confidence in our company or an indication of an impending event involving our
company. We recognize that our directors and officers may have reasons totally apart from the company in
determining to effect transactions in our common stock. These reasons could include the purchase of a home, tax
and estate planning, the payment of college tuition, the establishment of a trust, the balancing of assets, or other
personal reasons. The establishment of any trading plan involving our company requires the pre-clearance by our
Chief Executive Officer or Chief Financial Officer. An individual adopting a trading plan must comply with all

31



requirements of Rule 10b5-1, including the requirement that the individual not possess any material nonpublic
information regarding our company at the time of the establishment of the plan. In addition, sales under a trading
plan may be made rio earlier than 30 days after the plan establishment date.

No officers currently maintain trading plans.
ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Derivative Financial Instruments, QOther Financial Instruments, and Derivative Commodity Instruments

At December 31, 2003, we did not participate in any derivative financial instruments, or other financial and
commodity instruments for which fair value disclosure would be required under Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 107. We hold no investment securities that would require disclosure of market risk.

We have certain receivables denominated in Chinese Renminbi and certain payables denominated in
Japanese Yen. To eliminate our exposure to changes in the U.S. Dollar exchange rate with Chinese Renminbi and
Japanese Yen, we may enter into forward contracts to protect future cash flows. We have designated the forward
contracts as cash flow hedges. Accordingly, we account for changes in the fair value of our forward contracts, based
on changes in the forward exchange rate, with all changes in fair value reported in other comprehensive income.
Amounts in other comprehensive income will be reclassified into earnings upon settlement of the forward contract.
As of December 31, 2003, we had no forward contracts outstanding.

Primary Market Risk Exposures

Our primary market risk exposures are in the areas of interest rate risk and foreign currency exchange rate
risk. We have no credit facility outstanding in the United States.

We generally sell our products and services and negotiate purchase orders with our foreign suppliers in
U.S. Dollars. However, we have certain foreign currency exchange exposure as a result of our manufacturing
operations in the Philippines, Malaysia, and China and our sales and distribution facility in the United Kingdom.
We have not incurred any material exchange gains or losses to date. Some of the expenses of these foreign
operations are denominated in the Philippine Peso, Malaysian Ringgit, Chinese Renminbi, and British Pound
Sterling, respectively. These expenses include local salaries and wages, utilities, and some operating supplies. As a
result of these sales and expenses, we do have accounts receivable and cash deposits in local currencies. We believe,
however, that the operating expenses currently incurred in foreign currencies other than the Chinese Renminbi are
immaterial, and therefore any associated market risk is unlikely to have a material adverse effect on our business,
results of operations, or financial condition. Although the Chinese currency currently is stable, its value in relation
to the U.S. Dollar is determined by the Chinese government. There is general speculation that China may devalue
its currency. Devaluation of the Chinese currency could result in translation adjustments to our balance sheet as
well as reportable’losses depending on our monetary balances and outstanding indebtedness at the time of
devaluation. The'government of China historically has made it difficult to convert its local currency into foreign
currencies. Although we from time to time may enter into hedging transactions in order to minimize our exposure to
currency rate fluctuations, the Chinese currency is not freely traded and thus is difficult to hedge. In addition, the
government of China has imposed restrictions on Chinese currency loans to foreign-operated entities in China.
Based on the foregoing, we cannot provide assurance that fluctuations and currency exchange rates in the future will
not have an adverse effect on our operations.

We are exposed to risks from fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, primarily U.S.
Dollar/Japanese Yen, U.S. Dollar/Malaysian Ringgit and U.S. Dollar/Chinese Renminbi.

At December 31, 2003, one U.S. Dollar was worth 107 Japanese Yen. For the year ended December 31,
2003, the U.S. Dollar/Japanese Yen exchange rate fluctuated between 1:121 and 1:107. If there were a 10% change
in the U.S. Dollar/Japanese Yen exchange rate, the foreign currency gain/loss would be immaterial.

At December 31, 2003, one U.S. Dollar was worth 55 Philippine Pesos. For the year ended December 31,

2003, the U.S. Dollar/Philippine Pesos exchange rate fluctuated between 1:55 and 1:53. If there were a 10% change
in the U.S. Dollar/Philippine Pesos exchange rate, the foreign currency gain/loss would be immaterial.
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Both the U.S. Dollar/Malaysian Ringgit and U.S. Dollar/Chinese Renminbi exchange rates have been
pegged by the respective governments, and remained so throughout the year ended December 31, 2003. However,
there is the possibility that the respective governments may decide to revalue their exchange rate against the U.S.
Dollar. If there were a 10% change in the U.S. Dollar/Malaysian Ringgit and U.S. Dollar/Chinese Renminbi
exchange rates, the foreign currency gain/loss would be immaterial.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Reference is made to the financial statements, the reports thereon, the notes thereto, and the supplementary
data commencing at page F-1 of this report, which financial statements, reports, notes, and data are incorporated
herein by reference.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
Not applicable.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Controls Evaluation and Related CEO and CFO Certifications

We conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our "disclosure controls and
procedures" (Disclosure Controls) as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report. The controls
evaluation was done under the supervision and with the participation of management, including our Chief Executive
Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO). Attached as exhibits to this Annual Report are certifications of
the CEO and the CFO, which are required in accordance with Rule 13a-14 of the Exchange Act. This "Controls and
Procedures" section includes the information concerning the controls evaluation referred to in the certifications, and
it should be read in conjunction with the certifications for a more complete understanding of the topics presented.

Definition of Disclosure Controls

Disclosure Controls are controls and procedures designed to reasonably assure that information required to be
disclosed in our reports filed under the Exchange Act, such as this Annual Report, is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission's rules and
forms. Disclosure Controls are also designed to reasonably assure that such information is accumulated and
communicated to our management, including the CEO and CFO, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure.

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Controls

The company's management, including the CEO and CFO, does not expect that our Disclosure Controls
will prevent all error. A control system, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, not
absolute, assurance that the control system's objectives will be met. Further, the design of a control system must
reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their
costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute
assurance that all control issues within the company have been detected. These inherent limitations include the
realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or
mistake. Controls can also be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more
people, or by management override of the controls. The design of any system of controls is based in part on certain
assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in
achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions. Over time, controls may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions or deterioration in the degree of compliance with policies or procedures. Because of the
inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error may occur and not be detected.
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Scope of the Controls Evaluation

The evaluation of our Disclosure Controls included a review of the controls' objectives and design, the
company's implementation of the controls and the effect of the controls on the information generated for use in this
Annual Report. In the course of the controls evaluation, we sought to identify issues and confirm that appropriate
corrective action; including process improvements, were being undertaken. Many of the components of our
Disclosure Controls are also evaluated on an ongoing basis by our independent auditors, who evaluate them in
connection with determining their auditing procedures related to their report on our annual financial statements and
not to provide assurance on our controls. The overall goals of these various evaluation activities are to monitor our
Disclosure Controls, and to modify them as necessary.

Among other matters, we also considered whether our evaluation identified any "significant deficiencies"
or "material weaknesses" in our internal control over financial reporting, and whether the company had identified
any acts of fraud involving personnel with a significant role in our internal control over financial reporting. This
information was important both for the controls evaluation generally, and because item 5 in the certifications of the
CEO and CFO requires that the CEO and CFO disclose that information to our Board's Audit Committee and to our
independent auditors. In the professional auditing literature, "significant deficiencies" are referred to as "reportable
conditions," which are deficiencies in the design or operation of controls that could adversely affect our ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial data in the financial statements. Auditing literature defines "material
weakness" as a particularly serious reportable condition in which the internal control does not reduce to a relatively
low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud may occur in amounts that would be material in
relation to the financial statements and the risk that such misstatements would not be detected within a timely period
by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We also sought to address other controls
matters in the controls evaluation, and in each case if a problem was identified, we considered what revision,
improvement and/or correction to make in accordance with our ongoing procedures.

Conclusions

Based upon the controls evaluation, our CEO and CFO have concluded that, subject to the limitations noted
above, as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report, our Disclosure Controls were effective to provide
reasonable assurance that material information relating to us and our consolidated subsidiaries is accumulated and
communicated to management, including the CEO and CFO, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding
financial disclosure.

PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information required by this Item relating to our directors is incorporated herein by reference to the
definitive Proxy Statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A of the Exchange Act for our 2004 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders. The information required by this Item relating to our executive ofﬁcers is included in Item
1, "Business — Executive Officers" of this report.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the definitive Proxy Statement
to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A of the Exchange Act for our 2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the definitive Proxy Statement
to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A of the Exchange Act for our 2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

34



ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the definitive Proxy Statement
to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A of the Exchange Act for our 2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the definitive Proxy Statement
to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A of the Exchange Act for our 2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
(a) Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule
(1) Financial Statements are listed in the Index to Financial Statements on page F-1 of this report.

(2) Financial Statement Schedule:
Schedule IT Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves is set forth on page S-1 of this report.

Other schedules are omitted because they are not applicable, not required, or because the required
information is included in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K

We filed a current report on Form 8-K, dated November 4, 2003, furnishing Item 9 Regulation FD
disclosure in connection with a presentation.

We filed a current report on Form 8-K, dated October 23, 2003, reporting that we issued a press release
announcing our third quarter fiscal year 2003 results.

() Exhibits

Exhibit Number Exhibits

2 Amended and Restated Agreement and Plan of Reorganization(1)

22 Master Separation and Distribution Agreement between the Registrant and Brillian

3(i)(a) Corporation(18)
Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company(2)

3@)(b) Certificate of Amendment of Restated Certificate of Incorporation(3)

33)(c) Certificate of Designation of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock(4)

3(i1) Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company(5)

4.1 Form of Certificate of Common Stock(16)

4.2 Rights Agreement, dated as of April 26, 2001, between Three-Five Systems, Inc. and Bank
of New York, as Rights Agent(6)

10.2 Ground Sublease dated April 1, 1994, between Papago Park Center, Inc. and Three-Five
Systems, Inc.(8)

10.3 Amended and Restated 1990 Incentive Stock Option Plan (as Amended and Restated
through March 7, 2003)(16)

10.4 Amended and Restated 1993 Stock Option Plan (as Amended and Restated through
March 7, 2003)(16)

10.5 Amended and Restated 1994 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors (as Amended
and Restated through February 12, 2001)(9)

10.6 Amended and Restated 1997 Employee Stock Option Plan (as Amended and Restated
through November 27, 2002} (as corrected)(17)

10.7 Form of Notice and Acceptance of Stock Option Grant for Amended and Restated 1997
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Employee Stock Option Plan(10)

10.8 * Amended and Restated 1998 Stock Option Plan (as Amended and Restated through
. February 8, 2002)(16)

10.9 Amended and Restated Director's Stock Plan (amended as of January 27, 2000)(11)

10.10 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan(12)

10.15 Technology License Agreement between Data International, Ltd. and TFS-DI dated
January 13, 2003(16)

10.16 Supply Agreement between Data International, Ltd. and TFS-D1 dated January 13, 2003(16)

10.17 Term Promissory Note dated January 13, 2003 executed by TFS-DI in favor of Data
International, Ltd.(16)

10.18 Assignment and Assumption Agreement between the Registrant and Brillian
Corporation(18)

10.19 Intellectual Property Agreement between the Registrant and Brillian Corporation(18)

10.20 Tax Sharing Agreement between the Registrant and Brillian Corporation(18)

10.21 Real Property Sublease Agreement between the Registrant and Brillian Corporation(18)

10.22 Manufacturing Agreement between the Registrant and Microtune, Inc., dated March 27,
2003*

10.23 Joint Venture Agreement regarding the establishment and operation of TFS Electronic
Manufacturing Services Sdn Bhd, dated April 1, 2003*

10.24 " Equipment Lease Agreement between Unico Technology Berhad and Mattline Industries
Sdn Bhd, dated April 1, 2003*

10.25 Tenancy Agreement between Fortune Century Sdn Bhd, Jantron Sdn Bhd, and Mattline
Industries Sdn Bhd, dated April 1, 2003*

10.26 Tenancy Agreement between Geok Hong Sdn Bhd and Mattline Industries Sdn Bhd, dated
April 1, 2003*

10.27 License Agreement between the Registrant and Integrex, Inc., dated February 19, 2004*

10.28 Lease Agreement between SFERS Real Estate Corp. V and ETMA Corporation, dated July

: 21, 1999*

10.29 Lease Agreement between Therriault-Cogan, L.L.C. and ETMA Corporation, dated January
17,2001*

10.30 Lease Agreement between Rapp/Rise L.L.C. and ETMA Corporation, dated December 13,
2002%*

21 ‘ List of Subsidiaries*

23.1 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP*

23.2 Notice Regarding Consent of Arthur Andersen LLP(16)

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer of the Registrant pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and
Rule 15d-14(a) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. *

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer of the Registrant pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and
Rule 15d-14(a) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.*

32.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of the Registrant pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

322 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of the Registrant, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section

1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

*Filed herein.

(1) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4 of TF Consolidation, Inc.
(Registration No. 33-33944) as filed on March 27, 1990.

2) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(a) to the Registrant's Form 10-QSB for the quarter ended March 31,
1994, as: filed on or about May 12, 1994.

3) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(b) to the Registration Statement on Form S-3 (Registration No. 333-
35788) as filed on April 27, 2000, as amended by Form S-3/A as filed on May 5, 2000.

4) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(d) to the Registrant's Form 8-A as filed on May 10, 2001.

(5) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(b) to the Registration Statement on Form S-3 (Registration No. 333-
84083) as filed on July 30, 1999, as amended by Form S-3/A as filed on August 26, 1999.

(6) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(b) to the Registrant’s Form 8-A as filed on May 10, 2001.
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(13)
(14
15)
(16)
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(18)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(c) to the Registration Statement on Form S-4 of TF Consolidation,
Inc. (Registration No. 33-33944) as filed on March 27, 1990.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(o) to the Registrant's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1996, as filed on March 14, 1997,

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(x) to the Registrant's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
2001, as filed on July 27, 2001.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5(b) to the Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registration No.
333-39234) as filed on April 19, 2001.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(y) to the Registration Station Statement on Form S-8 (Registration
No. 333-50689) as filed on November 3, 2000.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(z) to the Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registration No.
333-57933) as filed on June 26, 1998.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(aa) to the Registrant's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
2000, as filed on July 27, 2000.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(cc) to the Registrant's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2000, as filed on March 13, 2001.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10{cc) to the Registrant's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31,
2002, as filed on April 19, 2002.

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002, as
filed on March 28, 2003.

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003, as filed on
July 31, 2003.

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Form 10/A (Amendment No. 4) (Registration No. 000-50289)
as filed with the SEC by Brillian Corporation on September 3, 2003.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

THREE-FIVE SYSTEMS, INC.

Date: March 15, 2004 ' By:_/s/ Jack L. Saltich
‘ Jack L. Saltich
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name Title Date
/s/__Jack L. Saltich President, Chief Executive Officer (Principal March 15, 2004
Jack L. Saltich Executive Officer), and Director
s/ Jeffrey D, Buchanan Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, March 15, 2004
Jeffrey D. Buchanan Secretary, Treasurer (Principal Financial and

Accounting Officer), and Director

/s/ _David C. Malmberg Chairman of the Board of Directors March 15, 2004
David C. Malmberg

/s/__David P. Chavoustie Director March 15, 2004
David P. Chavoustie

/s/_Murray A. Goidman Director March 15, 2004
Murray A. Goldman

/s/ Henry L. Hirvela Director March 15, 2004
Henry L. Hirvela

/s/ Thomas H. Wermer Director March 15, 2004
Thomas H. Werner
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of Three-Five Systems, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Three-Five Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders' equity,
comprehensive loss and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003. Our audits also
included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index. These financial statements and the financial statement
schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements and the financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstaternent. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates ‘made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Three-Five Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003, in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, the financial
statement schedule referred to above, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as
a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
March 10, 2004

F-2




THREE-FIVE SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share data)

December 31,

2002 2003
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash eqUIValEnts .......c.ccivervieeiiiviiiiriiiecirenireeeeere e ere e $ 18,389 § 27,976
Short-term investments 62,178 5,130
Accounts receivable, NET.....c.covciiiireeiiiic e 16,606 28,133
INVENTOTIES .oiiiiie et e re et e e e e s e s e s e s e sesese s e s s aennnenes 17,292 25,854
Income Taxes receivable 561 678
Deferred tax asset ............. . 2,357 130
Assets held for sale.... 841 8,615
Other CUITENE ASSEES ..ivvveiireeiieeeeeiiiiiieseeeiseeerrnnrberrrerreereteeeeneneaasenenens 2,204 2,782
Short-term assets of discontinued operation ..........cccocvvevevenievrcrerennnnes 4.455 -
TOtal CUITENT ASSELS ...uvvvrvviirrieiiererenruiirererirrrrrereeetrrriaeresieseesereresnsass 124,883 99,298
Property, Plant and EQuipment, N€t.......ccoceeeiriririiinnnicinrnceeeines e 23,345 25,323
Intangibles, net 5,292 7,574
GOOAWIL.ceiiieiriiiieeeeee ettt e re e e reseeesesaeeeeeeenns 34,901 34,606
Long-term Deferred Tax ASSEt......ccevieeeiiiiieiiienieeiiiire e sceieneee e snenenes 11,544 -
Other ASSEtS..uuvireiieieiiiriie et ee v e e srrae s 455 436
Long-term Assets of Discontinued Operation 22,274 -
TOtAl ASSEES ..evoicviiriereceririee e it enrrerr s sebaeeessernbeneaesssaatbeeesassnnres -3 222,694 § 167,237
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
ACCOUNES PAYADLE ....viviiviieiiii et ettt et bebesr et ns e 3 8,244 % 30,826
Accrued liabilities 4,491 4,917
Deferred revenue..........cooovvereeennnnen 23 48
Current portion of long-term debt 2,714 1,515
Current portion of capital 1eases.......occeevvrvreeniiiennne - 2,352
Current liabilities of discontinued operation 1.526 -
Total Current Liabilities .....vvvveeeiiiriieiiieiiiee e 16,998 39.658
Long-term Debl .....ccviiviiiiiicieiiesirir ettt re et errenae e erserens 20 1.441
Capital LEASES .veevviererereireesieesiniieesiireseeesaiesetteeseseneesnaessreressessseseensss - 6,543
Other Long-term Liabilities .......cccoceeiiiieiieniininiecin e 8 -
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 9)
Minority Interest in Consolidated Subsidiary.........ccecvvvirievieniierviveninennne - 2,563

Preferred stock, $.01 par value; 1,000,000 shares authorized,

No shares issued or outStanding.........coovecveveveereriessirereeenree s ereenennn - -
Common stock, $.01 par value; 60,000,000 shares authorized,

21,937,356 and 21,972,020 shares issued at December 31, 2002

and 2003, reSPECHIVELY ...vieiirriiiiriieiiieceeirt e rer et 219 220
Additional paid-in Capital .........ccocevvereierireriirinieer e e 200,763 200,930
Retained Earnings ..c..oocevvveeriiiriiee ettt er et ens 13,695 (74,915)
Stock subscription note receivable........... (174) (183)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (332) (515)
Less — Treasury stock, at cost, 651,317 shares at December 31, 2002

ANA 2003 .ottt _(8,503) (8.503)

Total stockholders' eqUILY ......cccoiivivieiiicci e 205,668 117,032
$ 222,694 § 167,237

The accompanying notes are an integral pari of these consolidated financial statements
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THREE-FIVE SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share data)

Years Ended
December 31,
2001 2002 2003
INEE SAIES ..vvviirieresiei et et eret et b et b et re st a bbbt b renn $ 117.200 $ 86.587 $§ 159.018
Costs and Expenses:
COSt OF SALES 1uviii vttt st ar e 115,820 78,718 155,125
Selling, general and administrative...........occooevccvnecncnnenrnnan 8,828 10,382 17,524
Research, development and engineering 8,623 4,913 4,742
Loss (gain) on sale of asSetS......ccovrreeireiineiennnceineiens 1,371 4,545 (25)
Amortization of intangibles .........cc.ccciveiecninienni - 256 2,043
134,642 98.814 179.409
OPErating 10881 .. eveeiecremririenritiinee sttt (17.442) _(12.227) (20,391)
Other Income (Expense):
INEEIESE, TIEL .ooivtiiiriiiiiee st cee et et b ece e e e v sre et e vaaerssaveeneas 7,266 3,328 (179)
OMhET, TIE vviveviei ettt ear et sanne e ene s 4 164 1,043
7.270 3.492 864
Minority Interest in Loss (Income) of Consolidated Subsidiary............. 167 84 (36)
Loss From Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes..........oervrunen. (10,005) (8,651) (19,563)
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes (4.172) (3.921) 14.338
Loss From Continuing OPerations............cooceeveioveieemecnnervesieenesioreseies (5,833) 4,730y (33,901)
Loss From Discontinued Operation, net of taxes.............coccevivvcreriienns (11.931) (12,241) (10,552)
INEE LOSS . evvivreeriraciirieeeene ettt an e a et e st bbbt rean s b e asone $ (17,764) $ (16,971) (44,453)
Loss Per Common Share — Basic and Diluted:
Loss From Continuing Operations..........c..ccueevveeeiriveenriireineenesrerennserenns $ 0.27) (0.22) (1.59)
Loss From Discontinued Operation ..........cvcvereerineeincrinnnerseenenneenns (0.56) (0.57) (0.50)
NEE LSS .ttt ienieie ittt eret et ra st e s bbere s ouesssbessebaneeeas $ (08H $ 079 § (2.09)
Weighted Average Number of Common Shares:
Basic and Diluted.......c..cccconeiiniiiinninr e 21,401 21,465 21,301

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements




Balance, December 31,2000 .................

NEt10SS ..vcviiiicirrcin e
Unrealized gains on investments.............
Foreign currency translation
adjuStments. .......c.oceerieeiceneirin e
Stock subscription note receivable..........
Stock options exercised and other...........
Tax benefit on stock option
EXEICISES .vcvcvrevirecoris e
Purchase of treasury stock.....
Balance, December 31,2001 .................

Foreign currency translation
AdJUSTINENTS. .cvoerens v
Stock subscription note receivable..........
Stock options exercised and other...........
Tax benefit on stock option
EXETCISES.c.c.vcvrimierianiersrrensiereieisriasarenees
Purchase of treasury stocK...........ccoorenee.
Balance, December 31,2002 .................

NEt10SS coocieierieir et
Unrealized losses on investments.............
Foreign currency translation
adjustments.........c.cocvcecrincrcnscnicnnene
Stock subscription note receivable..........
Stock options exercised and other...........
Distribution related to discontinued
operation
Balance, December 31,2003 .................

THREE-FIVE SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
For the Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003

(in thousands, except share data)

Accumu-
Stock lated Other
Additional Subscription  Comprehen- Total
Common Stock Paid-in Retained Note sive Income Treasury Stockholders'
Shares Issued  Amount Capital Earnings Receivable (Loss) Stock Equity

21,655,778  § 217 $198,215 $ 48,430 $ - $ (234 $ (4626) % 242,002
- - - (17,764) - - - (17,764)

- - - - - 260 - 260
- - - - - (47) - 47)

- - 410 - (163) - - 247

238,850 2 1,182 - - - - 1,184

- - 588 - - - - 588
- - - - - - (2,526) (2,526)
21,894,628 219 200,395 30,666 (163) @rn (7,152) 223,944
. - - (16,971) - - (16,971)

- - - - - (197} - (197)
- - - - - (114) - (114)
. - - - (11) - - (11)

42,728 - 323 - - - - 323

- - 45 - - - - 45

- - - - - - (1.351) 1351
21,937,356 219 200,763 13,695 (174) (332) (8,503) 205,668
- - - (44,453) - - - (44,453)
- - - - (65) - 65)

- - - - - (118) - (118)
- - - - an - - an

34,664 1 167 - - - - 168

- - - (44.157) - - - (44.157)
21,972,020 S 220 $200.930 $_(74915) §_ (185) $ _(515) §_ (8503) b 117,032

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003

(in thousands)

Years Ended December 31,

2001 2002 2003
Net LosS....coeveerernns tatreror ettt bttt st os i asnnasnins $ (17,764) $ (16,971 3 (44,453)
Other Comprehensive Loss, net of taxes:
Unrealized gains (Josses), net of tax expense
{benefit) of $129 and (§96) as of
years ended 2001 and 2002........cccoceveveirineciennnne. 260 (197) (65)
Foreign currency translation adjustment................... {47) (114) (118)
Comprehensive 108S.......ccovvciveiriicinercncenieciecnenes $ _(17,551) $ __(17,282) $ __(44,636)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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THREE-FIVE SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (in thousands)

Years Ended December 31,

2001 2002 2003
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
INEE LSS oeree oo veesseesseesseesmsssonss st ssemsssees s st s st oo $ (17,764) 8 (16,971) $ (44,453)
Less oss — discontinued OPETatioNS ... e cerseniesensecaeseans (11,931) (12,241) (10,552)
L055 — CONNUING OPETATIONS ....c..covuvierieiensierereeieeseerisesi e sees st sssese s saeereaas (5,833) 4,730) (33,901)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash (used in) provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization ............occeveieciin e csesssnens 4,085 3,950 7,588
STOCK COMPENSALION c..vviveieiicei bbbt et eb s - 104 50
Minority interest in consolidated subsidHary..........coovvrvevvvrecrircniees e (167) 84 36
DEfEITEA TEVENUE ...covvvveveiri ettt - 23 25
Provision for (reduction of) accounts receivable valuation reserves .................. 21D 323 271
Loss (gain) on disposal 0f @SSELS........cccrreviommrnrierircnricriennsrnnensee s sennens 1,371 4,545 25
Tax benefit on stock options eXercised..........cvevvcorrreneierecninermnricroconererecenins 588 45 -
Provision for (benefit from) deferred taxes, net .........ccooevvvecncnnrcorinnnicons (4,138) (2,289) 14,164
Foreign currency translation adjustments ..........couccoririicnerinnconeesennsessssnnnnns 47) (114) (118)
Interest 0N NOES PAYADIE .......c.covieiviiiniiieriitn et s - - 74
Interest on emMPIOYEE 1081 .......oovcricreiriirictieic et eb e (10) (11 {an
CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable ........covriciceinniencnine e 5,457 6,961 (12,077)
(Increase) decrease in IMVEMLOTIES ..o e ieeriensirearisresssasasassstssssssasasasasasssassssseane 7,733 7,010 (593)
(Increase) decrease in OthET ASSELS ......iccverviverinsiorrierierecerier e reebsessreaserssnrene (349) 452 (360)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities.........oovceeee (939) (13,959) 23,000
Increase {decrease) in taxes payable/receivable ..., (4,199) 3,399 a17n
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities ..........ccoecevcecrrienennccnnees 3,341 5,625 (1,994)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property, plant, and eqUIPMENT ......cc..ccocenierienciernneiierrnerienenns (3,021) (1,211) (2,644)
Proceeds from sale of assets , - 2,100 1,030
Purchase of intangibles................... . - (547) (1,444)
Purchase of ShOrt-term INVESHMENTS...........ooviiiirieeeiiiecreiee e er i ererer s eteaees (222,619) (102,591) (13,262)
Proceeds from maturities/sales of short-term INVEStMENtS ...........cecvevvveererreriienerenns 228,289 159,233 70,245
Payments on stock subscription note receivable ..........coivriiceieierccniennes 257 - -
ACUISTHONS. 1. coretiiies ettt s es e et et a st st brs o sese et stb b st enresasras - (50,089) (10,441)
Net cash provided by investing aCtivities ..........couvvvienririonninnieenn e 2,906 6,895 43,484
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payments on notes payable.. . - - (2,734)
Stock options exercised ...... 1,184 210 118
Payments on capital 188SES.......ov oo viescrieroie oo are s - - (1,722)
(Distribution to) receipt from Minority INTETESt........covvrivrienriarvineerisierereersssensenns 490 (239) 2,527
Purchase of treasury StoCK ..o e (2,526) (1,351) -
Net cash used in financing aCtVItES........coveri e ctresersien oot (852) (1,380) (1,811)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS -
CONTINUING OPERATIONS ..ot ens s 5,395 11,140 39,679
NET CASH USED IN AND CONTRIBUTED TO DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS .....ooiiiietitere e eb sttt st b st b b es (14,037) (29,754) (30,092)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ......... (8,642) (18,614) 9,587
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR ........c..ccoocvvcrcenee 45,645 37,003 18,389
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,END OF YEAR ........cccocoooicviiiniinnne $ 37,003 $ 18,389 27,976
NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
INTETESE PAIG......oes et ettt bbb b anes b 201 $ 178 $ 1,007
Income taxes paid (refunded) ...........coocevvnrieenineiiinee e (808) (5,088) 387
Note payable due on purchase of distribution rights license ...........coceecvrccrerrinnee - - 2,956
Capital leases due on purchase of eqUIPMENL..........ccovcvrivererivmenierirniinsciiiereniens - - 8,895

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

F-7




THREE-FIVE SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003

(1) Organization and Operations:

Three-Five Systems, Inc. (together with its subsidiaries, herein referred to as “we,” “us,” or “the Company™) is a
global provider of electronics manufacturing services, or EMS. We design and manufacture electronic circuit board
assemblies, radio frequency, or RF, modules, display sub-systems, and complete systems for major original equipment
manufacturers (“OEMs”) in the automotive, computing, consumer, industrial, medical, and telecommunications
industries. Our services to OEMs specifically include advanced engineering support, "designed for" services,
automated printed circuit board assembly, in-circuit and functional testing, systems level integration and box build,
turn-key packaging, fulfillment services, and turn-key supply chain management services, all of which enable our
customers the ability to outsource all stages of product engineering, design, development, materials procurement and
management, manufacturing, and testing. As a subset of our EMS business, we specialize in design and manufacturing
display module sub-systems and integrating those sub-systems into other products. The display module sub-systems we
design and manufacture include monochrome and color liquid crystal display, or LCD, components, organic light
emitting diodes, or OLEDs, cathode ray tubes, or CRTs, and flat panel monitors.

* On September ', 2003, we transferred all of the net assets of our microdisplay division, plus approximately $20.9
million in cash, into a newly created Delaware corporation called Brillian Corporation. On September 15, 2003, we
spun off Brillian by distributing all of the outstanding common stock of Brillian to our stockholders on a pro rata basis,
with each stockholder of Three-Five Systems, Inc., or TFS, receiving one share of Brillian common stock for each four
shares of our common stock. Brillian is now traded on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbot “BRLC.”
Brillian had $44.1 million of net assets on the spin-off date. The microdisplay business that we transferred to Brillian is
now reported in these consolidated financial statements as Discontinued Operations.

Net loss from discontinued operation before income taxes was $16.5 million, $19.0 million and $10.6 for 2001,
2002, and 2003, respectively. The income tax benefit for discontinued operation was $4.5 million and $6.7 million for
2001 and 2002. There was no tax benefit in 2003 for the discontinued operation. Net loss from discontinued operations
was $12.0 million, $12.3 million and $10.6 for 2001, 2002, and 2003, respectively. Sales from discontinued operations
were $1.9 million, $1.4 million and $1.6 million for 2001, 2002, and 2003 respectively. The major classes of
discontinued assetsiand liabilities included in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2002 and the day of
spin-off are as follows (in thousands):

Asgets: December 31, September 15,
2002 2003
CaSh..oceieee e rerebeene e S - $ 20,453
Accounts receivable..........ocoviiiiieiee e 364 473
INVENLOTIES ..eevvieeec et 2,584 2,937
Other CUITENE BSSELS ......v..veeceoeerereveevereeesersseesreesseeeeesenees 1,507 961
Property, plant and equipment, net........c...ccooevevireneenenn. 8,218 6,384
TRtANGIDIES, TIET 1.ttt 9,627 8,894
Other long-term assets 4.429 4,730
Total assets from discontinued operations.................... $ 26.729 N 45332
Liabilities: :
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities...........cc.ccoveenne $ 1,191 $ 1,063
Deferred revenue 335 112
Total liabilities from discontinued operations .............. $ 1.526 $ 1.175
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(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:
Principles of Consolidation and Preparation of Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Three-Five Systems, Inc. and its wholly owned
subsidiaries. All material intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared to reflect our historical financial position and results of
operations and cash flows as adjusted for the reclassification of our microdisplay division as a discontinued operation.
Historical results of operations of the microdisplay division are reported as a discontinued operation in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Use of Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. On an on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates and judgments,
including those related to sales returns, bad debts, inventories, fixed assets, intangible assets, income taxes, and
contingencies. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe are
reasonable under the circumstances. The results form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Customer Concentration

Our strategy involves concentrating our efforts on providing design and electronics manufacturing services to
leading companies in a limited number of fast-growing industries. We have been undertaking substantial efforts to
diversify our business, broaden our customer base, and expand our markets. Product sales for our historical major
customer, Motorola, accounted for approximately 87%, 78%, and less than 10% of our net sales in 2001, 2002, and
2003, respectively. In 2003, we had two customers exceed 10% of our net sales, Avocent and Vitelcom, accounting for
23% and 13% of our net sales, respectively. No other customer accounted for more than 10% of net sales in fiscal 2001,
2002, or 2003.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

We have determined the estimated fair value of financial instruments using available market information and
valuation methodologies. Estimating fair values requires considerable judgment. Accordingly, the estimates may not be
indicative of amounts that would be realized in a current market exchange. The carrying values of cash, short-term
investments, accounts receivable, and accounts payable approximate fair value due to the short maturities of these
instruments. In addition, at December 31, 2002, and 2003 the carrying amount of the term loan payable is estimated to
approximate fair value as the actual interest rate is consistent with rates estimated to be currently available for debt with
similar terms and remaining maturities.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three
months or less are considered to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents consist of investments in money market mutual
funds. A portion of our funds held in money market mutual funds are invested in repurchase agreements. These
repurchase agreements are collateralized by U.S. Treasury and Government obligations. Cash and cash equivalents at
December 31 consisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2002 2003

Cash and cash equivalents:
CaSh. e $ 12,513 % 19,568
5,876 8,408

$ 18,389 § 27,976




Accounts Receivable, net

Allowance for doubtful accounts was $446,000 and $509,000, as of December 31, 2002 and 2003, respectively.
Allowance for sales returns was $41,000 and $227,000 as of December 31, 2002 and 2003, respectively.

Investments

Short-term investments have original maturities greater than three months and remaining maturities of less than one
year. All investments are classified as available for sale and are presented at market value using the specific
identification method based on quoted market prices. Unrealized gains and losses are reflected in other comprehensive
income. Realized gains and losses are included in results of operations. Short-term and long-term investments
consisted of the following at (in thousands):

December 31,

2002 2003
Short-term investments:
Certificates of deposit ........c.cccvvrvrernecrnnee $ 11,498 $ -
Corporate notes and bonds .......c...cccooveveeeneee 40,056 5,130
U.S. government agency securities .............. 10,624

$ 62,178 § 5,130

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or net realizable value and consisted of the following at
(in thousands):

December 31,

2002 2003
Raw materialS ......c.o.coovvvveriieceveecrceeeresevesenns $ 10915 § 14,188
Work-in-process 2,868 5,321
Finished g00ds.........ccccvmriininiicncccans 3,509 6,345

$ 17,292 $ 25,854

Shipping terms with one of our major customers is FOB destination, and many of those products are shipped
by water taking fourito six weeks to reach their destination. As a result, we had $3.6 million of product in transit at the
end of 2003 and in our finished goods inventory. We made two significant estimates regarding inventory at the end of
2003. First, we are holding approximately $778,000 of inventory relating to a program cancelled by a customer,
Approximately 47% of that inventory related to material that we had purchased to fulfill purchase orders issued to us by
that customer and 53% of that inventory related to material that we purchased in connection with a general business
agreement entered irnto with respect to that customer regarding long-lead time parts. As a result of initial discussions
with the customer, we have not established a reserve for any of this inventory. Second, we learned from another
customer prior to the end of the year that a product shipped by us to them contained potentially defective parts. Those
potentially defective parts came from a component supplied to us by a vendor specified by our customer. We are
investigating whether those parts can be repaired or whether they are unrepairable. If they are unrepairable, then
approximately $1.2 million of inventory that we are holding would be worthless. It is our belief that such parts can be
repaired. It is also our belief that if such parts cannot be repaired, then the liability for such worthless inventory would
lie with the vendor of the defective component. As a result, we did not record a reserve for any potentially bad
inventory relating to this second issue.
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Property, Plant, and Equipment

Property, plant, and equipment is recorded at cost and is depreciated using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the respective assets. Lives for the major asset categories are:

Lives
Buildings ....c.occovvinnnniniiiiiias 39 years
Building Improvements ...........c.cccceevenenns 15— 38 years
Equipment ........coeevvveierenenineeeneecrecens 3 -7 years
Fumniture ..o 5~ 10 years

Major additions and betterments are capitalized, while replacements, maintenance, and repairs that do not extend the
useful lives of the assets are charged to operations as incurred. Depreciation expense totaled $4.1 million, $3.7 million,
and $5.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002, and 2003, respectively. Property, plant, and equipment
consisted of the following at (in thousands):

December 31,
2002 2003
Land and building .........co..cvrvveccernionrnienrienrnns $ 16,476 $- 6,122
Furniture and equipment..........ccocvnereonrnnenns 32,472 40,907
48,948 47,029
Less accumulated depreciation......c....ccoveevnnn, (25,603) (21,706)

$ 23345 § 25,323

In 1994, we conveyed our Tempe, Arizona facility and certain improvements to the city of Tempe as consideration
for a rent-free 75-year lease. We have the option to repurchase the facility for $1,000 after ten years; therefore, the
building lease is accounted for as a capital lease.

Assets Held for Sale

During the fourth quarter of 2003, we formalized plans to sell our Tempe, Arizona corporate facility; therefore, we
reclassified $8.6 million of our building and improvements to assets held for sale. The building was listed and actively
marketed for sale at the beginning of October 2003; therefore, no depreciation expense has occurred during the fourth
quarter of 2003. We also formalized plans to sell $52,000 of idle equipment in Manila. The equipment has been
transferred out of our production area and is actively being marketed for sale.

Intangibles

In January 2003, we signed licensing and manufacturing agreements with Data International Co., Ltd. of Taiwan.
Under those agreements, we became the exclusive channel in the Americas for standard and custom LCD products
manufactured by Data International. We also have the right to sell those products through our worldwide channels. The
agreements provide us with access to a full suite of standard display products that round out our existing standard
product portfolio. The cost of the license was $3.9 million, of which $1.0 million was paid upon signing and we entered
into a $2.9 million term loan, which will be due over the next two years. The unpaid $2.9 million is subject to reduction
if certain margin targets are not met.

Intangibles consist of mask works, trademarks, customer lists and distribution rights. SFAS 142, Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets, requires purchased intangible assets with definitive lives to be amortized over their useful lives.
Purchased intangibles are recorded at cost and amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives
of the respective assets, which range from three to five years. Our policy is to commence amortization of intangibles
when their related benefits begin to be realized. Intangible assets consisted of the following (in thousands):




December 31, 2002 Acquisition Accumulated Book Weighted

Value Amortization Value Avg Life
Amortized Intangible Assets:
Mask WOTKS .....oovveviirecnreeenecnee $ 548 $ - $ 548 3.0
Customer Lists ...ooooeniecnieceen e 5,000 (256) 4,744 4.2
LICenSe. .vcvveerirrerie e - - - -
$ 5,548 $ (256) $ 5,292 4.1
December 31,2003 Acquisition Accumulated Book Weighted
Value Amortization Value Avg Life
Amortized Intangible Assets:
Mask WOTKS ..ocvevveieriiieeirieice e $ 991 $ - 3 991 3.0
CUusStomer LiStS ...vvvveireiiriiereeeeireeesrvenrnens 5,000 (1,523) 3,477 4.2
LICENSE. ..vvviivreiiirieiercnrerre e e sre e 3,882 (776) 3,106 5.0
$ 9,873 $ (2,299) $ 7,574 4.4

Intangible assetiamortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2002 was $256,000. Intangible asset
amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2003 was $2.0 million.

Estimated annual amortization expense through 2008 and thereafter related to intangible assets reported as of
December 31, 2003 was as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year

2004......oiviiiiiiin, $ 2,323
2005 i 2,315
2006, 1,704
2007 .t 1,226
2008...cciiiiiniii, 4
Thereafier.................... 2

Evaluation of Long-Lived Assets with Definite Lives

In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS™) No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”, we evaluate the recoverability
of property, plant and equipment and intangibles with definite lives not held for sale. Whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of the assets may not be recoverable, we evaluate recoverability by
comparing the carrying amount of the asset or group of assets against the estimated undiscounted future cash flows
expected to result from the use of the asset or group of assets and their eventual disposition. If the undiscounted cash
flows are less than the carrying value of the asset or group of assets being evaluated, an impairment loss is recorded.
These cash flows are evaluated for objectivity by using weighted probability techniques and also comparisons of past
performance against projections. Assets may also be evaluated by identifying independent market values. The loss is
measured as the difference between the fair value and carrying value of the asset or group of assets being evaluated.
Assets held for sale are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or the fair value less cost to sell. The estimated fair
value is based on the best information available under the circumstances, including prices for similar assets or the
results of valuation techniques, including the present value of expected future cash flows using a discount rate
commensurate with the risks involved.

Goodwill
In accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, goodwill is analyzed for impairment,
on at least an annual basis, or more frequently under certain circumstances, and written down when impaired rather than

being amortized.

Goodwill decreased $295,000 due to a $610,000 reduction of the ETMA Corporation purchase price and the addition
of $315,000 of capitalized acquisition costs related to the Unico acquisition.
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Changes in goodwill from December 31, 2002 to December 31, 2003 (in thousands) were as follows:

Total

Balance at December 31, 2002 $ 34,901

Change .....ccoenvccnmnrnniccriicnnes (2935)
Balance at December 31, 2003 $ 34,606

Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities included, among other things, accrued compensation of approximately $1.8 million and $1.9
million at December 31, 2002 and 2003, respectively.

Income Taxes

Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 109,
Accounting for Income Taxes, requires the use of an asset and liability approach in accounting for income taxes.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded based on the differences between the financial statement and tax bases of
assets and liabilities and the tax rates in effect when these differences are expected to reverse.

Foreign Currency Translation

For foreign subsidiaries that use currency other than the U.S. dollar as their functional currency, assets and
liabilities are translated at exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date, and revenue and expenses are translated at
the weighted average exchange rate for the period. The effects of these translation adjustments are reported in other
comprehensive income and as a separate component of stockholders’ equity.

Derivatives

On January 1, 2001, we adopted SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,
which establishes accounting and reporting standards requiring us to recognize derivatives as either assets or liabilities
on the balance sheet and to measure those instruments at fair value. The adoption of SFAS No. 133 did not have a
material impact on our financial position or results of operation.

We may use derivatives to manage exposures to foreign currency fluctuations. The only type of derivative we use
1s foreign currency forward contracts. Our objectives for holding these forward contracts are to decrease the potential
volatility of earnings and cash flows associated with changes in foreign currency exchange rates (see Note 9).

Revenue Recognition

We recognize sales when persuasive evidence of a sale exists; that is, a product is shipped under an agreement with
a customer, risk of loss and title have passed to the customer, the fee is fixed or determinable, and collection of the
resulting receivable is reasonably assured. This means that when a product is shipped from one of our factories under
the terms of “FOB Factory,” then the risk of loss passes to the customer when the product leaves our factory and we
recognize revenue at that time. One the other hand, when a product is shipped “FOB Destination,” then risk of loss
during transit is maintained by us. Thus, we recognize revenue when the product is accepted by the customer. Sales
allowances are estimated based upon historical experience of sales returns. We recognize revenue related to
engineering and tooling services after service has been rendered, which is determined based upon completion of agreed
upon milestones or deliverables.

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of our customers
to make required payments. We determine the adequacy of this allowance by regularly evaluating individual customer
receivables and considering a customer’s financial condition, credit history, and current economic conditions. If the
financial condition of our customers were to deteriorate, additional allowances may be required.

Sales allowances are estimated based upon historical experience of sales returns.




Research, Development, and Engineering
Research, development, and engineering costs are expensed as incurred.

Stock Compensation

Pursuant to the provisions of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, we account for options
granted to our employees pursuant to Accounting Principles Board Opinion (APB) No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued
to Employees, under which no compensation cost has been recognized. However, we have computed compensation cost,
for pro forma disclosure purposes, based on the fair value of all options awarded on the date of grant, utilizing the
Black-Scholes option pricing method with the following weighted assumptions: risk-free interest rates of 4.42%, 2.74%,
and 3.25% for 2001, 2002, and 2003; expected dividend yields of zero for all scenarios; expected lives of 6.1 years for
2001 and 2002 and 5.7 years for 2003; and expected volatility (a measure of the amount by which a price has fluctuated
or is expected to fluctuate during a period) of 74.5%, 74.4%, and 79.6% for 2001, 2002, and 2003, respectively. The
compensation costs for 2001 and 2002 are tax-effected and the compensation costs for 2003 are not tax-effected. Had
compensation cost for these plans been determined consistent with SFAS No. 123, our net loss and loss per share would
have been as follows (in thousands, except per share data):

Years Ended December 31,

2001 2002 2003
Net loss:
ASTEPOItEd ..o $ (17,764) § (16,971) $§ (44.453)
Total stack-based compensation
expenses determined under fair value
based method for all awards, net of
related tax effects ......ecvvnivevnieniiceiii e (3,223) (4,378) (5,035)
Pro forma net 1088 ....oovveeveverereerieccereecenas $  (20,987) § (21,349) §  (49,48%8)
Basic and diluted net loss per share:
AS TEPOTLEd ...eevvenrveiiiereee et ees $ (0.83) § (0.79) § (2.09)
Pro fOITa c.ovecvveeeereeiirencerneennecereseenensenienees (0.98) (0.99) 2.32)

Earnings Per Share

Basic net income (loss) per common share is computed by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during the year before giving effect to stock options and warrants considered to
be dilutive common stock equivalents. Diluted net income (loss) per common share is computed by dividing net
income (loss) by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year after giving effect to
stock options and warrants considered to be dilutive common stock equivalents. Set forth below are the disclosures
required pursuant to SFAS No. 128 — Earnings per Share:

Years Ended December 31,

2001 2002 2003

Basic earnings (loss) per share:

Net INCOME (0SS -.vrvvrvriieeeiiriririerr et ee bt e §__(7.764) §_ (16971) §_ (44453)
Weighted average common shares.......c..ococevrnvreevvenecncens 21,401 21,465 21,301

Basic earnings (loss) per share amount .........c...coocovvevernnn. § (083 8 (079 § (209

Diluted eamings (loss) per share:

Net INCOME ([0SS)urvvorverirercinreeireenietese et ettt srstereeesenns § (7,764 5 (16971) §  (44,453)
Weighted average common shares........c...cccececvviccrreerernnns 21,401 21,465 21,301
Options and warrants assumed exercised.........coovvrieverierinen, - - -
Total common shares plus common stock equivalents .......... 21,401 21,465 21,301

Diluted earnings (loss) per share amount ...........co.oveveveec. $§ (083 § (079 § (209

For the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003, the effect of 577,431, 314,569 and 348,030 shares,
respectively, were excluded from the calculation of loss per share as their effect would have been antidilutive and
decreased the lossiper share.
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Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 45 (“FIN 457), “Guarantor’s Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.” This Interpretation
addresses the disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its financial statements and its obligations under guarantees. The
Interpretation also clarifies the requirements related to the recognition of a liability by the guarantor at the inception of a
guarantee. Per the Interpretation, initial recognition of a liability are to be applied only on a prospective basis to
guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. We adopted the requirements of FIN 45 as of January 1, 2003,
and there was no impact on our financial position or results of operations.

In January 2003, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) issued EITF 00-21, “Accounting for Revenue
Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables.” EITF 00-21 addresses the issues of how to determine whether an
arrangement involving multiple deliverables contains more than one unit of accounting and how arrangement
consideration should be measured and allocated to the separate units of accounting in the arrangement. EITF 00-21
does not change otherwise applicable revenue recognition criteria. EITF 00-21 is effective for revenue arrangements
entered into in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2003. The application of EITF 00-21 did not have a material
effect on our financial statements.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 46 (“FIN 46”), “Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities,” which clarifies the application of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, “Consolidated Financial Statements,”
relating to consolidation of certain entities. This interpretation was subsequently revised by FIN 46 (Revised 2003) in
December 2003. This interpretation states that consolidation of variable interest entities will be required by the primary
beneficiary if the entities do not effectively disperse risk among the parties involved. The requirements are effective for
fiscal years ending after December 15, 2003. We have no variable interest entities and do not believe that FIN No. 46
(R) will impact our future financial results.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics
of Both Liabilities and Equity” (“SFAS No. 150”). SFAS No. 150 requires the classification of certain financial
instruments, previously classified within the equity section of the balance sheet, to be included in liabilities. SFAS No.
150 is effective for financial instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003 and June 15, 2003 for all other
instruments. The adoption of SFAS No. 150 did not have an impact effect on our financial statements.

Minority Interest

In April 2003, we acquired the business and certain assets of Unico Technology Bhd., a privately held Malaysian
company located in Penang. Unico was an electronic manufacturer for OEM customers in the computer, computer
peripheral, and communications industries. The Unico business was acquired by TFS Electronic Manufacturing Services
Sdn. Bhd., or TFS-Malaysia, a joint venture owned 60% by an overseas TFS subsidiary and 40% by Unico Holdings Bhd.,
the former parent of Unico. We control TFS-Malaysia and consolidate this subsidiary with Unico Holdings Bhd’s
ownership accounted for as a minority interest. Unico Holdings is the investment arm of the Chinese Chamber of
Commerce of Malaysia. Our share of the initial cost of capitalizing TFS-Malaysia was $3.8 million, and Unico
Holdings’ share was $2.5 million, most of which will be used for working capital. TFS-Malaysia purchased $4.1 million
in inventory from Unico, of which $2.7 million was paid at the time of the purchase and $1.4 million was subsequently
paid. No advance payment was required for the acquisition of the property, plant, and equipment of Unico, all of which
is Jeased from the seller. The equipment lease is accounted for as a capital lease. The principal balance on that lease
was $8.1 million as of December 31, 2003.

The minority interest for 2001 and 2002 relate to our subsidiary, Three-D OLED L.L.C., that was partially owned by
Dupont Displays, which was subsequently liquidated in 2002.

Loss (Gain) on Sale of Assets

During 2002, we signed a Cooperative Agreement with a Chinese company under which we agreed to sell the
equipment used in our front-end LCD equipment and establish a supply agreement. Under the terms of the Cooperative
Agreement, in exchange for our front-end LCD line, we received a total of $3.0 million in cash during 2002 and 2003.
In the second quarter of 2002, as a result of signing the Cooperative Agreement, we realized a charge of $4.5 million for
the write-down on the LCD equipment sold to the Chinese company. This charge was reported as a separate line item in
operating expense. In connection with the Cooperative Agreement, we received $2.1 million in 2002, all of which was
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applied against the $3.0 million sales price and recorded as a reduction in the carrying value of the LCD equipment held
for sale. The sale of the equipment is now complete, and we received $900,000 in 2003.

During 2001, we wrote off $1.4 million of costs relating to the cancellation of our J.D. Edwards Enterprise
Resource Planning System implementation. During 2003, we reached a settlement of our legal claim against J.D.
Edwards and recorded the settlement as other income of approximately $700,000.

(3) Acquisitions and Strategic Transactions:

In March 2003, we signed an agreement with Microtune, Inc. under which we agreed to manufacture, assemble,
and test Microtune’s radio frequency, or RF, tuner modules and wireless module products in our manufacturing facility
in Manila, the Philippines. As part of the agreement, Microtune sold to us certain of its own equipment and inventory
for $8.2 million, of which $2.7 million was a note payable due in September 2003, and contracted with us to provide
100% of Microtune’s current demand for fully assembled RF subsystems. We also hired approximately 500 Microtune
employees in Manila. In October 2003, we paid off approximately $300,000 of the $2.7 million note payable to
Microtune and entered into an agreement to cancel the remaining $2.4 million balance on that note payable in exchange
for the return of inventory to Microtune.

In April 2003, we acquired the business and certain assets of Unico Technology Bhd., a privately held Malaysian
company located in' Penang. Unico was an electronic manufacturer for OEM customers in the computer, computer
peripheral, and communications industries. The Unico business was acquired by TFS Electronic Manufacturing Services
Sdn. Bhd., or TFS-Malaysia, a joint venture owned 60% by an overseas TFS subsidiary and 40% by Unico Holdings Bhd.,
the former parent of Unico. Unico Holdings is the investment arm of the Chinese Chamber of Commerce of Malaysia.
Our share of the initial cost of capitalizing TFS-Malaysia was $3.8 million and Unico Holdings’ share was $2.5 million,
most of which will be used for working capital. TFS-Malaysia purchased $4.1 million in inventory from Unico, of
which $2.7 million was paid at the time of the purchase and $1.4 million was subsequently paid. No advance payment
was required for the acquisition of the property, plant, and equipment of Unico, all of which is leased from the seller.
The equipment lease is accounted for as a capital lease that is payable by TFS-Malaysia. The principal balance on that
lease was $8.1 million as of December 31, 2003.

In September 2002, we purchased the assets and ongoing business of AVT, located in Marlborough, Massachusetts,
a privately held company that specializes in the design and integration of complex, high-resolution display systems.
AVT designs and provides customized and ruggedized flat panel, touchscreen and rackmount systems for original
equipment manufacturers. The purchase price of the acquisition was $12.0 million, which we paid entirely in cash.

The purchase price was allocated as follows (in thousands):

CUrTent asSetS ....ovcivvvirrivrereie e s $ 2,115
Property, plant and equipment.................. 105
Customer list intangibles .......cccoverenriennen 3,000
GOOAWIL...occviiriereiie e 7,774
Other long-term assets..........coveevevrcecs 40
Current liabilities.......ooovvevieiiiiiiireiieeene, (1,045)
Net Acquisition price.......oeerererrnennns $ 11,989

In December 2002, we purchased the stock of ETMA Corporation, located in Redmond, Washington, a privately held
electronics services manufacturer for OEM customers in the automotive, computer/server, medical monitoring, and
Internet security industries. ETMA offers the manufacturing capabilities of five surface mount manufacturing lines,
including one dedicated to new product introduction and prototyping activity. ETMA provides engineering support,
automated printed circuit board assembly, in-circuit and functional testing, systems integration and box build, complete
supply chain management, and turnkey packaging and fulfillment services. The purchase price of the acquisition was
$38.1 million, which we paid entirely in cash.




The purchase price was allocated as follows (in thousands):

Current aSSets ..occvvveveverevivrresreeresresre e $ 17,389
Property, plant and equipment.................. 1,454
Customer list intangibles........cccccoveveeenenn 2,000
GoodWill. ..ot 27,127
Current liabilities .......ocoovveevecrinnenninans (9,842)
Long-term liabilities .........cooecrrerenivenennes (28)
Net Acquisition price........c.coeveeereiureneee $ 38,100

Total intangible assets from the acquisition of AVT and ETMA related to customer lists of $5.0 million will be amortized
over their weighted averaged useful lives of approximately four years.

The results of operations of AVT and ETMA have been included in the accompanying financial statements since their
respective acquisition dates. The acquisition of AVT was considered immaterial and pro forma results are therefore not
presented. Unaudited pro forma Consolidated Statements of Operations for 2001 and 2002, presented as if ETMA had
been acquired at the beginning of each year, are as follows (in thousands, except per share data):

Years Ended December 31,

2001 2002
(unaudited)
NEL SAIES ..ot rr i as e sas e st sesebsssnees $ 170,597 $ 150,108
NEt10SS. .t (21,044) (17,065)
Loss per share (basic and diluted).........c.cooeevrrvenenn (0.98) (0.80)

The pro forma amounts include a reduction in interest income related to the presumption that the acquisition occurred
as of January 1, 2001 and 2002 and investments were therefore reduced by $38.1 million. ETMA incurred an unusual
item of $3.6 million in 2001 for the write-off of accounts receivable.

Goodwill decreased $295,000 due to a $610,000 reduction of ETMA Corporation purchase price and the addition of
$315,000 of capitalized costs related to the Unico acquisition.

Changes in goodwill from December 31, 2002 to December 31, 2003 (in thousands) were as follows:

Total
Balance at December 31, 2002................ $ 34,901
Change ..o 295
Balance at December 31, 2003 $ 34,606

(4) Long-Term Debt:

Long-Term balances were as follows at (in thousands):

December 31,
2002 2003
Loan due to Bank of China, interest due quarterly at 5.85%, due April
30, 2003, secured by a $3.0 million stand-by letter of credit issued
under the $15.0 million revolving line of credit.........o...corevvvrerrevcrnen. 2,706 -
Term loan due to Data International, interest rate of 2.6% due
JANUATY 2005 . ......ouiieeeeirieeecrt ettt - 2,956
OHEr JOAT c.ouveiii it e et re st st reens 8 28 $ -
2,734 2,956
Less current portion . 2,714 1,515
Long-1eTm POITION ...covt et e et et saas $ 20 § 1,441

In September 2003, we paid off our unsecured $2.7 million term loan to the Bank of China.
Interest expense was $101,000, $186,000, and $204,000, respectively, for 2001, 2002, and 2003.
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The following table lists our note payable payments relating to long-term debt reported as of December 31, 2003
(in thousands):

Fiscal Year

2004 ..., $ 1,515
2005 e, 1,441
Total $ 2,956

(5) Capital Leases:
Capital leases were as follows at (in thousands):

December 31,
2002 2003

Capital lease due on purchase of Unico equipment,
interest rate'13.3%, payable through April 2007 ......c.cccoiiciinerieneen $ - $ 8135

Other capital leases with interest rate ranges from 1.9% to 14.2%,
payable through December 2003 and July 2007 .........c.ocoreoverrvnnnee.

760

8,895

Less CUITENt POTLIOT ...vvenviercircierenr et et sn s - 2,352
Long-term POrtion......c.o.ceceiieiiiiiei e et $ - $ 6,543

Interest expense related to capital leases was $868,000 in 2003.
The following table lists our capital lease payments reported as of December 31, 2003 (in thousands):

Fiscal Year,

2004 $ 2352
2005 eoverreeeereereen 2,617
2006, ..o 2,909
2007 correreeeeeree e 1,017
Total $ _ 8895

(6) Stockholders’ Equity:

On December 7, 2000, our Board of Directors authorized a stock repurchase program whereby our company, at the
discretion of management, could buy back up to $30.0 million of our common stock in the open market. During the
year ended December 31, 2000, we purchased 241,381 shares at a cost of $4,623,000. During the year ended December
31,2001, we purchased 149,197 shares at a cost of $2,526,000. During the year ended December 31, 2002, we
purchased 260,600 shares at a cost of $1,351,000. There were no stock repurchases in 2003,

During the second quarter of 2001, our Board of Directors adopted a stockholder rights plan (the “Rights Plan™).
Under the Rights Plan, we issued a dividend of one Preferred Share Purchase Right (the “Right”) for each share of
common stock of our company held by stockholders of record as of the close of business on May 14, 2001. Each Right
entitles stockholders to buy one one-thousandth (1/1000™) of a share of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock of
our company at an exercise price of $120.00 (subject to adjustment). The Rights Plan was not adopted in response to
any specific takeover threat. The Rights Plan, however, was designed to assure that all of our stockholders receive fair
and equal treatment in the event of any proposed takeover of our company, and to guard against coercive or unfair
tactics to gain control of our company without paying all stockholders a premium for that control.
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(7) Benefit Plans:

We have five stock option plans: the 1990 Stock Option Plan (1990 Plan), the 1993 Stock Option Plan (1993 Plan),
the 1994 Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan (1994 Plan), the 1997 Stock Option Plan (1997 Plan), and 1998
Stock Option Plan (1998 Plan).

1990 Stock Option Plan

Under the 1990 Plan, there were options issued but unexercised to purchase 76,520 shares of our company’s
common stock as of December 31, 2003. The 1990 Plan expired on May 1, 2001, at which time all unissued options
expired.

The expiration date, maximum number of shares purchasable, and the other provisions of the options granted under
the 1990 Plan were established at the time of grant. Options were granted for terms of up to ten years and became
exercisable in whole or in one or more installments at such times as were determined by the Board of Directors upon
grant of the options.

1993 Stock Option Plan

Under the 1993 Plan, there were options outstanding to acquire 275,367 shares of our company’s common stock
under the 1993 Plan at December 31, 2003. The 1993 Plan expired on February 24, 2003, at which time all unissued
options expired.

1994 Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan

The 1994 Plan provides for the automatic grant of stock options to non-employee directors to purchase up to
100,000 shares of our common stock. On April 26, 2001, the stockholders approved a proposal to amend our 1994
Automatic Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors (the “1994 Plan”). Now, under the 1994 Plan, options to
acquire 2,000 shares of common stock will be automatically granted to each non-employee director at the meeting of
our Board of Directors held immediately after each annual meeting of stockholders, with such options to vest in a series
of 12 equal and successive monthly installments commencing one month after the annual automatic grant date. In
addition, each non-employee director serving on our Board of Directors on the date the 1994 Plan was approved by our
stockholders received an automatic grant of options to acquire 5,000 shares of common stock and each subsequent
newly elected non-employee member of our Board of Directors receives an automatic grant of options to acquire 5,000
shares of common stock on the date of their first appointment or election to our Board of Directors. Those options
become exercisable and vest in a series of three equal and successive annual installments, with the first such installment
becoming exercisable immediately after the director's second successive election to our Board of Directors (the First
Vesting Date), the second installment becoming exercisable 10 months after the First Vesting Date, and the third
installment becoming exercisable 22 months after the First Vesting Date (provided that the director has not ceased
serving as a director prior to a vesting date). A non-employee member of our Board of Directors is not eligible to
receive the 2,000 share automatic option grant if that option grant date is within 30 days of such non-employee member
receiving the 5,000 share automatic option grant. The exercise price per share of common stock subject to options
granted under the 1994 Plan will be equal to 100% of the fair market value of our common stock on the date such
options are granted. There were outstanding options to acquire 55,093 shares of our common stock under the 1994 Plan
at December 31, 2003. The plan remains in force until April 12, 2004, at which time all unissued options will expire.

1997 Stock Option Plan

The 1997 Plan provides for the granting of nonqualified options to purchase up to 2,100,000 shares of our common
stock. Under the 1997 Plan, options may be issued to key personnel and others providing valuable services to our
company. Any option that expires or terminates without having been exercised in full will again be available for grant
pursuant to the 1997 Plan. There were options outstanding to acquire 1,205,532 shares of our common stock under the
1997 Plan at December 31, 2003.

The expiration date, maximum number of shares purchasable, and the other provisions of the options will be

established at the time of grant. Options may be granted for terms of up to ten years and become exercisable in whole or
in one or more installments at such time as may be determined by the plan administrator upon grant of the options. The
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exercise prices of the options are determined by the plan administrator, but may not be less than 100% of the fair market
value of the common stock at the time of the grant. The 1997 Plan will remain in force until May 12, 2007,

1998 Stock Option Plan

The 1998 Plan provides for the granting of incentive stock options and nonqualified options to purchase up to
1,600,000 shares of our common stock. Under the 1998 Plan, options may be issued to key personnel and others
providing valuable services to our company. The options issued will be incentive stock options or nonqualified stock
options as defined in Section 422 of the Code. Any option that expires or terminates without having been exercised in
full will again be available for grant pursuant to the 1998 Plan. There were options outstanding to acquire 1,420,962
shares of our common stock under the 1998 Plan at December 31, 2003.

The expiration date, maximum number of shares purchasable, and the other provisions of the options will be
established at the time of grant. Options may be granted for terms of up to ten years and become exercisable in whole or
in one or more installments at such time as may be determined by the plan administrator upon grant of the options. The
exercise prices of the options are determined by the plan administrator, but may not be less than 100% of the fair market
value of the common stock at the time of the grant (110% if the option is an incentive stock option granted to a
stockholder who at the time the option is granted owns stock representing more than 10% of the total combined voting
power of all classes of stock of our company). The 1998 Plan will remain in force until January 28, 2008.

Tax benefits from option exercises are credited to additional paid-in capital.

The following/table and narrative summarizes the status of our five stock option plans at December 31, 2001, 2002,
and 2003, and changes during the years then ended:

2001 2002 2003
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Options Price Options Price Options Price
Outstanding at beginning '

Of Year......ocoovvevcrevceninecnaciennne 1,974,668 § 14.75 2,086,969 § 1497 2,890,728 $ 1259
Granted .....cccoeeevveviereenneae e 535,295 19.44 1,153,699 9.21 497,402 4.65
EXErcised ...ocvvveririereeirereieieiennnone (235,665) 6.55 (39,183) 5.35 (24,684) 4.79
Expired or canceled..................... 187.329 35.97 310,757 16.94 329,972 35.40
Outstanding at end of year........... 2,086,969 1497 2,890,728 1259  3,033474 8.87
Exercisable at end of year............ 617,906 § 981 1,042,169 § 1148  1,648170 § 9.57
Weighted average fair value of

options granted ............cecorereen. 3 1613 3 729 $ 505

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2003:

Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable
Number Weighted Number
Outstanding Average Weighted Exercisable Weighted
Range of at Remaining Average at Average
Exercise December 31, Contractual Exercise December 31, Exercise
Prices 2003 Life Price 2003 Price
$0.32-87.46 1,814,114 7.0 3 5.01 1,005,296 3 550
7.47-14.92 608,244 7.4 9.98 291,933 9.88
14.93 - 74.63 611,116 6.8 19.20 350.941 20.95
3,033,474 7.0 $ 8.87 1,648,170 $ 957

In connection with the spin-off, each outstanding TFS option granted prior to the spin-off was converted into both
an adjusted TFS option and a substitute Brillian option. The treatment of such TFS options and the substitute Brillian
options is identical for those employees who remained employees of TFS immediately after the spin-off and for those
employees who became employees of Brillian in connection with the spin-off. These TFS options were converted in a
manner that preserved the aggregate exercise price of each option, which was allocated between the adjusted TFS
option and the substitute Brillian options, and each preserved the ratio of the exercise price to the fair market value of
the stock subject to the option.
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401(k) Profit Sharing Plan

We have adopted a profit sharing plan (401(k) Plan). The 401(k) Plan covers substantially all full-time employees
who meet the eligibility requirements and provides for a discretionary profit sharing contribution by us and an employee
elective contribution with a discretionary matching provision by our company. We expensed discretionary

contributions pursuant to the 401 (k) Plan in the amount of $262,000, $200,000, and $187
December 31, 2001, 2002, and 2003, respectively.

Pension Plan

,000 for the years ended

On June 1, 2001, Manila adopted a defined benefit pension plan (the Pension Plan) for its employees. The Pension

Plan covers most regular Manila employees. The Pension Plan benefits were retroactive

to an employee’s date of hire,

resulting in a pension benefit obligation as of January 1, 2001 of $249,000. The pension benefit obligation at December

31, 2001, 2002, and 2003 was $349,000 and $210,000, and $327,000, respectively.
(8) Income Taxes:

The following table presents the U.S. and international components of income (loss)
before income taxes for the years ended December 31 (in thousands):

Operations Before Income Taxes

from continuing operations

December 31,
2001 2002 2003
United States .....vvveviviereireiivere s $ (13,248 § (12,116) $ (18,866)
International ..........cooeoieiiiniieiini e 3,243 3,465 (697)
Total Pretax Loss from Continuing Operations............ $ (10,005) $ (8,651) $ (19,563)

The provision (benefit) for income taxes for the years ended December 31 consists of the following (in thousands):

2001 2002 2003
Current provision (benefit), net of tax credits utilized:

Federal. ...ttt § (831) $ (2,118) § 15
SHALES 1oeere i e - - -
FOTEIZN vttt 797 486 159
(34) (1,632) 174

Deferred provision (benefit).......coovvreevieirneciiinneinnn, (4,138) (2,289) 14,164
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes................. §  (4,172) $ (3,921) $ 14,338

The components of deferred taxes at December 31 are as follows (in thousands):

2002 2003
Net current deferred tax assets:
Uniform capitalizZation..........coceeeeveiirieininaniecosensessne e seecnesnenes $ 985 8§ 261
Accrued liabilities and reserves not currently deductible............. 1,105 952
Allowance for doubtful acCoUnts ..oo.veivicivivns e 56 77
Valuation allowance ... e - (1,294)
OBNET .ttt bbb e s e 211 134
3 2,357 8 130
Net long-term deferred tax (liabilities)/assets:
Accelerated tax depreciation......co.iiiecinreniecrnrienresconsnnases $ 42) $ 797
Net operating loss and tax credit carryforward ... 12,745 23,303
Capital loss carryforward ..o e 1,288 1,288
Valuation allowance ........ccceeevenivveniinnininen e (2,064) (25,064)
Investments in foreign affiliates..........ccooovereerieieiniececcceen (383) (324)
3 11,544 % -
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We currently have $130,000 of short-term deferred tax assets resulting from operations in foreign jurisdictions. At
the end of the second quarter of 2003, we had $19.8 million of net deferred tax assets resulting primarily from net
operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. SFAS No. 109 requires that a valuation allowance be established when it is
more likely than not!that all or a portion of a deferred tax asset will not be realized. In determining whether a valuation
allowance is required, we must take into account all positive and negative evidence with regard to the utilization of a
deferred tax asset, including our past earnings history, market conditions, management forecasts of future profitability,
the character and jurisdiction of such earnings, unsettled circumstances that, if unfavorably resolved, would adversely
affect utilization of a deferred tax asset, carryback and carryforward periods, and tax strategies that could potentially
enhance the likelihood of realization of a deferred tax asset. SFAS No. 109 further states that it is difficult to conclude
that a valuation allowance is not needed when there is negative evidence such as cumulative losses in recent years.
Therefore, despite the fact that a major portion of the losses came from our spun-off microdisplay division, the
expectation of reporting a loss in the fourth quarter from our continuing operations means that we will have three years
of cumulative losses. Those cumulative losses weigh heavily in the overall required assessment and outweigh our
forecasted future profitability and expectation that we will be able to utilize all of our net operating loss carryforwards.
As a result, in the third quarter, we recorded a charge to establish a full valuation allowance against our deferred tax
asset. We expect to ‘continue to record a full valuation allowance on future tax benefits until we return to profitability.
During 2003, our tax expense was $14.3 million as a result of our full valuation allowance.

Our capital loss carryforward expires in 2006. We have $60.6 million of federal net operating loss carryforwards
that begin to expirerin 2022. We have other general business credit carryforwards that expire 2017.

In connection with the formation and spin-off of Brillian, Brillian assumed a net deferred tax liability of
approximately $1.1 million. This net deferred tax liability is the result of differences between the book and tax basis of
assets transferred to Brillian. We retained the net operating losses that were generated by Brillian operations before the
spin-off.

A reconciliation of the U.S. federal statutory rate to our effective tax rate is as follows:

2001 2002 2003
Statutory federal rate.........occoveoiviinnicnieie e (34%) (34%) (34%)
Effect of state taXes.....occovevveeervcee e - - -
Foreign earnings taxed at different rates................. &) (16) 2
OthET, BEL .ot - 4 -
Valuation AUOWENCE .....c.eveveieririiniineree e - 9 105
(42%) (45%) 73%

A deferred U.S. tax liability has not been provided on the undistributed earnings of certain foreign subsidiaries
because it is our intent to permanently reinvest such earnings. Undistributed eamings of foreign subsidiaries, which
have been, or are intended to be, permanently invested in accordance with APB No. 23, Accounting for Income Taxes —
Special Areas, aggregated approximately $7.9 million at December 31, 2003.
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(9) Commitments and Contingencies:

Rent and Lease

In April 2001, Manila began its lease of a build-to-suit factory in Manila. The term of the lease is 125 months.

We lease our manufacturing and warehouse facilities in Redmond, Washington, which extends through December
2007. We lease our manufacturing facility in Penang, Malaysia, which extends through April 2006. We lease our
manufacturing facility in Marlbourgh, Massachusetts, which extends through March 2004. We lease our sales offices in
Swindon and Florida, which extend through January 2005 and April 2006, respectively.

We own and occupy an approximately 97,000 square foot facility in Tempe, Arizona, which houses our U.S.-based
manufacturing operations and our research, development, engineering, design, and corporate functions. We entered into
a ground lease for this facility that extends through March 31, 2069, subject to renewal and purchase options as well as
early termination provisions. The annual lease payments on the related land are approximately $100,000, subject to
certain escalation provisions.

Our future lease commitments under all non-cancelable operating leases as of December 31, 2003 are as follows (in
thousands):

2004 ..o $ 3,778
2005 (i, 3,181
2000, 2,134
2007 i 1,573
2008 ..o 1,247
Thereafter ..o 8,892

$ 20,805

Rent expense was approximately $712,000, $1,783,000, and $3,806,000 for the years ended December 31, 2001,
2002, and 2003, respectively. We lease part of our Tempe facility to Brillian and have received $68,000 for 2003.

Guarantee

In February 2002, we guaranteed up to $500,000 of the debt of a private start-up company, VoiceViewer
Technology, Inc., which is developing microdisplay products. This guarantee was assumed by Brillian Corporation in
the spin-off. We have not yet been released from our obligation on the guarantee, so if Brillian becomes required to pay
on the guarantee and is unable to satisfy its obligation, then we are secondarily liable and will be required to pay this
guarantee to the lender. As of December 31, 2003, our maximum liability under this guarantee was $425,000. This loan
guarantee has a five-year term and matures in January 2007,

Legal Proceedings

During the fourth quarter of 2003, we reached a settlement of our legal claim against J.D. Edwards for
$700,000, which has been recorded as other income.

We are also involved in certain administrative proceedings arising in the normal course of business. In our opinion,

the ultimate settlement of these administrative proceedings will not materially impact our financial position or results of
operations.
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Derivative Instruments

We have certain receivables denominated in Chinese Renminibi and certain payable denominations in Japanese
Yen. To eliminate our exposure to changes in the U.S. Dollar exchange rate with Chinese Renminibi and Japanese Yen,
we may enter into forward contracts to protect our future cash flows. Our forward contracts generally range from one to
six months in original maturity.

In accordance with SFAS No. 133, we designate such forward contracts as cash flow hedges. We account for
changes in the fair value of our forward contracts based on changes in the forward exchange rate, with all such changes
in fair value reported in other comprehensive income. Amounts in other comprehensive income are reclassified into
earnings upon settlement of the forward contract at an amount that will offset the related transaction gain or loss arising
from the re-measurement and adjust earnings for the cost of the forward contracts. During 2003, there were no
significant gains or losses recognized in earnings for hedge ineffectiveness and we did not discontinue any hedges
because it was probable that the original forecasted transaction would not occur. As of December 31, 2003, there were
no forward contracts outstanding.

(10) Segment Information:

We offer advanced design and manufacturing services and display products to OEMs. Historically, we focused on
display-oriented products, although we have always performed extended manufacturing in conjunction with the display
module. In the pasti15 months, we expanded the value-added manufacturing services we provide through several
acquisitions. As a result, we now provide printed circuit board assembly, or PCBA, radio frequency, or RF, module
assembly, new product introduction, or NPI, box build, and order fulfillment, even in products that do not need displays.
In products that doiinclude displays, we specialize in custom and standard display solutions utilizing various display
technologies, including liquid crystal displays, or LCDs, organic light emitting diodes, or OLEDs, and cathode ray
tubes, or CRTs. The products we manufacture for OEMs are of varying sizes and have varying levels of integration.

As a result of the spin-off of our microdisplay division into Brillian, we now report only one operating segment,
although we also track net sales and certain property, plant, equipment and intangibles by geographic location. Net sales
by geographic area are determined based upon the location of the end customer, while long-lived assets are based upon
physical location of the company’s assets. The following includes net sales (in thousands) for our designated
geographic areas:

North
America Asia Europe Total
December 31, 2001
NEt 5a1ES woviveiiiriiree e $ 18305 $ 55243 § 43652 § 117,200
Property, plant, equipment, and intangibles........... 18,267 13,731 21 32,019
GOoOdWill...ovieireceire e - - - -
December 31, 2002
Net sales $ 12,128 § 50,591 $ 23,868 § 86,587
Property, plant, equipment, and intangibles 16,933 11,697 7 28,637
GOOAWILLieeveiiire et 34,901 - - 34,901
December 31, 2003
NEtSAIES .oveeircirce e s $ 85813 § 32,632 § 40573 § 159,018
Property, plant, equipment, and intangibles............ 11,051 21,842 4 32,897
GOOAWIllL.... vt 34,291 315 - 34,606
F-24




In 2003, our sales were distributed over six major markets: automotive, computing, consumer, industrial,
medical/instrumentation, and telecommunications. In 2002, we were highly concentrated with 82.0% of our sales
coming from a single market, telecommunications. Qur net sales distributed by market was as follows:

Markets 2002 2003
Computing 7% 38%
Telecom ., 82% 28%
Medical 4% 13%
Industrial 5% 10%
Consumer 1% 6%
Automotive 1% 5%

(11) Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

The following table summarizes the unaudited consolidated quarterly results of operations as reported for 2002 and
2003 (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Quarters Ended
2002 2003
Mar 31 Jun 30 Sep 30 Dec 31 Mar 31 Jun 30 Sep 30 Dec 31

Net sales......ccoove.... $ 22,884 § 23,864 § 18239 §$ 21,600 25,324 45,992 41,778 45,924
Gross profit (loss) ... 1,788 2,384 1,216 2,481 175 1,894 (272) 2,096
Loss from
continuing
operations ............... (843) (3,091) (753) 41 (3,197 (2,533) (24,949) (3,222)
Loss from
discontinued
OpErations ............... (3,467) (3,549) (2,625) (2,600) (2,278) (2,343) (5,931) -
Net10SS ..ooovvcvnnnennn, (4,310) (6,640) (3,380) (2,641) (5,475) (4,876) (30,880) (3,222)
Earnings (loss) per

common share

basic and diluted:

Net loss from

continuing

operations........ $ (004 $ (014 $ (0.04) $ 0.00 $ (015 $ (012 $ .17y § (019
Net loss from

discontinued

operations........ $§ (016) $ (0.17) $ (0.12) $ (0.12) $ @1 $ (011) $ (@©28 $ 0.00
Net 108S i, § @200 $ (031) § (.16 § (0.12) $§ (02 § (023) § (145 §$ (015

The quarter ended June 30, 2002 included the $4.5 million charge related to the LCD equipment sale. The quarter
ended December 31, 2003 included $700,000 in other income relating to the J.D. Edwards settlement.

(12) Subsequent Events

We recently announced that our Board of Directors has approved a decision to enter into a transaction with
Integrex, a Seattle-based electronics manufacturing services company that is liquidating business. Under that
transaction, we bought the raw materials inventory of Integrex and hired certain of their employees. We also obtained
the rights to most of their customers and agreed with those customers that we would manufacture those customers
products in our Redmond manufacturing facility. In exchange for those customer rights, we agreed to pay a license fee
for between 15 and 24 months based on revenue actually received by us from the sale of products to the former Integrex
customers. A portion of that license fee was paid in advance at closing.

We recently announced our Board of Directors has approved a decision to close our display module manufacturing
operations in Manila and consolidate those operations in China, resulting in an anticipated decrease of our worldwide
work force of nearty 25%. Manila will continue as a specialized RF module manufacturing center. We anticipate a
substantial portion of this cost to occur in the first quarter of 2004,
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THREE-FIVE SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE 11 .
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES
For the Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003
(in thousands)

Increases
(Reductions)
Balance at Charged to
beginning of Costs and ) Balance at
Period Expenses Write-offs End of Period
Allowance for doubtful accounts
and sales returns ;
Year ended 12/31/2001............... $ 439 $ (211) $ - $ 228
Year ended 12/31/2002............... $ 228 $ 323 $ (64) $ 487
Year ended 12/31/2003............... $ 487 $ 271 $ (22) $ 736
Valuation allowance for deferred
taxes :
Year ended 12/31/2001............... $ - $ 1,299 $ - $ 1,299
Year ended 12/31/2002............... $ 1,299 $ 765 $ - $ 2,064
Year ended 12/31/2003............... $ 2,064 $ 24,294 $ - $26,358
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LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES
Name Jurisdiction of Organization
Three-Five Systems Limited United Kingdom
Three-Five Systems Pacific, Inc. Philippines
Three-Five Systems (Beijing) Co., Ltd. Peoples Republic of China
ETMA Corporation ‘ Washington
TFS-DI, Inc. Arizona
TFS International, Ltd. Bermuda
TFS International II, Ltd. Bermuda

TFS Electronic Manufacturing Services Sdn. Bhd.  Malaysia

Exhibit 21




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Jack L. Saltich, certify that:

1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Three-Five Systems, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establiéhing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared,;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 15, 2004

/s/ Jack L. Saltich
Jack L. Saltich
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, Jeffrey D. Buchanan, certify that:

1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Three-Five Systems, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 15, 2004

/s/ Jeffrey D. Buchanan
Jeffrey D. Buchanan
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Three-Five Systems, Inc. (the "Company") for the
year ended December 31, 2003 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
"Report™), I, Jack L. Saltich, President, Chief Executive Officer, and Director of the Company, certify, pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirefnents of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a) or 780(d)); and

2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ Jack L. Saltich
Jack L. Saltich
President, Chief Executive Officer, and Director

Date: March 15, 2004

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Three-Five
Systems, Inc. and will be retained by Three-Five Systems, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange
Commission or its staff upon request.




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Three-Five Systems, Inc. (the "Company") for the
year ended December 31, 2003 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
"Report"), 1, Jeffrey D. Buchanan, Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Secretary, Treasurer, and

Director of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that: '

) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a) or 780(d)); and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

(s/ Jeffrey D. Buchanan

Jeffrey D. Buchanan ¢

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,
Secretary, Treasurer, and Director

Date: March 15, 2004

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Three-Five

Systems, Inc. and will be retained by Three-Five Systems, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange
Commission or its staff upon request.
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The spin off of Brillian also allowed us to focus our energy
and investment on building upon our two unique areas of
expertise: displays and RF modules.

While we shipped less than $1 million in color display prod-
ucts in 2002, that number grew to nearly $25 million in
2003. We also added a complete line of standard display
products and developed a line of platform display products
that expanded our custom display portfolio. We added
large format display products to the portfolio in the form of
customized and ruggedized flat panels, which we build in
Marlborough, Massachusetts. Our ability to provide
customers with this very robust display offering not only
drives revenue, it allows us the opportunity to win more
programs by offering customers every option from a simple
standard solution to a full custom solution that provides
them true product differentiation. Our sales force is also
working hard to capture the many new opportunities that
are arising by teaming this display expertise with our global
EMS capability.

Our new area of expertise lies in RF module manufac-
turing. During 2003, we won the opportunity to provide
100% of the manufacturing requirements for Microtune, a
designer of RF modules for the set-top box and automotive
markets. Our Philippines operation currently builds all of
Microtune’s products. We believe that this RF expertise we
have established in Manila is a highly marketable capability,
and we plan to attract additional RF customers this year.

Certainly the most significant result of all this change is the
customer mix that was represented by our 2003 revenue.
in 2002, nearly 82% of our revenue was derived from the
telecommunications market, mainly from Motorola.
However, we ceased manufacturing display modules for
Motorola handsets during the second half of 2003 and by
the end of the year, our revenue came from not one, but
from six different markets. In 2003, ten customers drove
79% of our revenue. This compares to just one customer
driving 78% of revenue in the preceding year. | can say with
confidence that we have, at long last, broken the back of
customer and market concentration. We now have a solid
diversified foundation upon which to grow profitability.

This welcome but rapid change was not without its chal-
lenges. We struggled with several issues during the year,
including integration issues in our new RF module busi-
ness, excess capacity in our display module factories, and
negative margins on new and fast-ramping color display
products. As we concluded the year, however, we have
addressed many of these issues. We remedied initial nega-

tive margin issues on the color display products and also
resolved many of our RF module issues. In early 2004, we
announced that we are consolidating our display module
operations in Beijing. This will allow our Manila factory to
focus on building RF modules. it will also allow us to
continue to develop our LCD capability and focus all our
LCD module activities at our Beijing factory.

Despite the dramatic changes we drove throughout 2003
and the challenges we worked to overcome, we delivered
revenue at near record levels. While profitability is taking
longer to achieve than we had planned, a great many of our
key strategic objectives are now firmly secured. That has
created a solid foundation, which, when combined with our
projected revenue growth, has given us the confidence to
forecast a return to profitability by the end of 2004.

Outlook and Summary

As we reflect on the results of our transformation in 2003,
the value proposition for the new TFS clearly emerges: We
are an EMS company with a solid history of manufacturing
capability. Our differentiation comes from the added value
we provide through our historical expertise in displays and
our growing expertise in the RF module business. We are
unigue among smaller EMS companies in offering a global
footprint. Yet we are unique among global EMS companies
by providing tremendous customer service.

We will not rest on our 2003 accomplishments. In 2004, we
plan to target growth markets, such as Class 3 medical and
gaming, that can benefit from our value proposition;
strengthen our global footprint to allow customers optimal
global placement for their products; and expand our port-
folio of unique specialties beyond displays and RF modules
to additional capabilities that will drive increased gross
margins. Our objective for 2004 is to focus all efforts toward
executing this strategy. It is my firm belief that execution of
this strategy will increase the value that we deliver to our
customers and to all of you, our stockholders.

Sincerely,

Q@ KAty

Jack L. Saltich
President and CEO

This President's Letter contains forward-looking statements. Therefore, the reader should note that the “Statement Regarding Forward-
Looking Statements” located in the Form 10-K immediately after the Table of Contents, applies equally to this Letter.
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